

20 August 2014

Manager, Company Announcements, Australian Securities Exchange Limited, Level 4, 20 Bridge Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Year Ended 30 June 2014 Appendix 4E

Attached is a copy of the Breville Group Limited Appendix 4E including Independent Audit Report and Auditor's Independence Declaration for the Year Ended 30 June 2014.

Yours faithfully

, hona titte

Sasha Kitto Company Secretary Breville Group Limited

Telephone: (02) 9384 8100

Breville Group Limited ABN 90 086 933 431 Building 2, Port Air Industrial Estate 1a Hale St, Botany NSW 2019 Australia

T + 61 (2) 9384 8100 F + 61 (2) 9700 1249 breville.com

We are FOOD THINKERS.



Breville Group Limited

ABN 90 086 933 431

Appendix 4E – Preliminary final report

Note: The numbering marked with [] within this preliminary final report is consistent with the numbering used in the guidelines issued by the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) under ASX Listing Rule 4.3 A.

Current reporting period [1]:

year ended 30 June 2014

Previous corresponding period [1]: year ended 30 June 2013

Results for announcement to the market

		Percentage change				Amount	
		Up or Down	%			A\$'000	
Total sales revenues [2.1]		Up	11.3%	to		541,615	
Earnings before interest, tax, depreamortisation (EBITDA)	eciation &	Down	1.2%	to	o 77,947		
Earnings before interest and tax (E	BIT)	Down	1.6%	to		70,448	
Net profit after income tax for the y members [2.2] [2.3]	ear attributable to	Down	1.9%	to	48,765		
Dividends [2.4]	Date paid / payable [7]	Amount per security [2.4]	amo securi	anke ount j ty at x [2.4	persecurity of30%foreign sourc		
Interim dividend							
Current reporting period	9 APR 2014	14.0¢			14.0¢	0.0¢	
Previous corresponding period	10 APR 2013	14.0¢			9.5¢	0.0¢	
Final dividend							
Current reporting period	10 OCT 2014	13.0¢			13.0¢	0.0¢	
Previous corresponding period	10 OCT 2013	12.0¢			12.0¢	0.0¢	
Ex-dividend date for the final dividend: 17 Record date for determining entitlements		.5]: 19 September 20	014				
Dividend reinvestment plan [8] The dividend reinvestment plan will not b	e in operation for the c	urrent reporting peric	od final div	viden	d.		

Brief explanation [2.6]

Please refer to the commentary in the operating and financial review section of the directors' report.

For further explanation please refer to the ASX report announcement accompanying this preliminary final report.

Total dividend paid/payable [7]

		Previous corresponding
	Current period	period
	A\$'000	A\$'000
Interim dividend paid	18,213	18,213
Final dividend payable	16,912	15,611

Net tangible assets [9]

		Previous corresponding
	Current period	period
	cents per security	cents per security
Net tangible assets per security	106.2 ¢	99.14¢
		•

п

Control gained or lost over entities [10]

The group has not gained or lost control of any entities during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Associates and joint venture entities [11]

The group held no interests in associates or joint ventures during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Compliance statement

The results for announcement to the market should be read in conjunction with the attached preliminary final report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

No audit dispute or qualification is contained in the attached independent audit report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Sign here:

hona titte

Sasha Kitto Company secretary

Date:

20 August 2014



Breville Group Limited

ABN 90 086 933 431

Financial report

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 June 2014

Contents

Company information	. 4
Directors' report	. 5
Corporate governance statement	26
Income statement	30
Statement of comprehensive income	31
Statement of financial position	32
Statement of changes in equity	33
Cash flow statement	34
Notes to the financial statements	35
Directors' declaration	78
Independent audit report	79
Auditor's independence declaration	81

Company information

This financial report covers the consolidated entity comprising Breville Group Limited and its subsidiaries (company or group).

A description of the group's operations and of its principal activities is included in the operating and financial review in the directors' report on pages 7 to 10. The directors' report is unaudited (except for the remuneration report) and does not form part of the financial report.

Directors

Steven Fisher Non-executive chairman

Tim Antonie Non-executive director *(appointed 18 December 2013, effective 19 December 2013)*

Sally Herman Non-executive director

Dean Howell Non-executive director

Steven Klein Non-executive director

Lawrence Myers Non-executive director (appointed 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013)

Samuel Weiss Non-executive director

Company secretaries

Mervyn Cohen Sasha Kitto (appointed 26 June 2014)

Registered office and principal place of business

Building 2 Port Air Industrial Estate 1A Hale Street Botany NSW 2019 Telephone (+61 2) 9384 8100

Company websites

brevillegroup.com breville.com kambrook.com.au ronson.com.au sageappliances.co.uk ABN Breville Group Limited ABN 90 086 933 431

Share register

Link Market Services Limited Level 12, 680 George Street Sydney NSW 2000

Enquiries within Australia: (02) 8280 7111 Enquiries outside Australia: (+61 2) 8280 7111 Website: linkmarketservices.com.au

Auditors

Ernst & Young 680 George Street Sydney NSW 2000

Bankers

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 20 Martin Place Sydney NSW 2000



Directors' report

The board of directors of Breville Group Limited (company) has pleasure in submitting its report in respect of the group for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Board of directors

The names and details of the company's directors in office during the year and until the date of this report are as below. Unless indicated otherwise, directors were in office for this entire period.

Steven Fisher

Non-executive chairman

B.ACC, CA(SA)

Mr Fisher has more than 25 years' experience in general management positions in the wholesale consumer goods industry and is currently chief executive of the Voyager Group. Prior to entering into the consumer goods industry Mr Fisher was a practicing chartered accountant having qualified in South Africa with a Bachelor of Accounting degree. In addition, Mr Fisher serves on various private company boards. Mr Fisher was non-executive director until his appointment as non-executive chairman on 28 May 2013.

During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Tim Antonie – appointed 18 December 2013, effective 19 December 2013

Non-executive director

BEcon

Mr Antonie has 20 years' experience in investment banking and formerly held positions of Managing Director from 2004 to 2008 and Senior Advisor in 2009 at UBS Investment Banking, with particular focus on large scale mergers and acquisitions and capital raisings in the Australian retail, consumer, media and entertainment sectors. He holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Monash University and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Price Waterhouse. Mr Antonie is the non-executive chairman of Interactive Pty Limited.

During the last three years he has served as a non-executive director of the following other listed companies:

- Premier Investments Ltd #
- Village Roadshow Limited #
- # denotes current directorship

Sally Herman

Non-executive director

BA, GAICD

Ms Herman has had a long career in financial services in both Australia and the United States, including 16 years with the Westpac Group, running business units in most operating divisions of the Group. Ms Herman is now a full-time Sydney based non-executive director on both commercial and not for profit boards. She is actively involved in the community, with a particular interest in education, the arts and disability services.

During the last three years she has served as a non-executive director of the following other listed companies:

- Premier Investments Ltd #
- FSA Group Ltd #
 - # denotes current directorship

Dean Howell

Non-executive director

FCA, FTIA

Mr Howell has had an extensive career in accounting, spanning some 40 years, and accordingly has a wealth of commercial and advisory experience. He was the former senior partner of a Melbourne firm of chartered accountants and also served on that firm's national and international boards. He is currently a consultant with Grant Thornton. He is also a director of Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation Ltd.

During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.



Directors' report continued

Board of directors continued

Steven Klein

Non-executive director

LLB, B.Com

Mr Klein is a Principal of SBA Law. He has had over 25 years experience acting on behalf of both public and private companies in merger and acquisition transactions.

During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Lawrence Myers

Non-executive director - appointed 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013

B.Acct, CA, CTA

Mr Myers has over 20 years' experience as a practising Chartered Accountant. He is the Managing Director and founder of MBP Advisory Pty Limited, a high end Sydney firm of Chartered Accountants. Mr Myers sits on numerous private company and not-forprofit boards and acts as a trusted advisor and mentor on business and financial matters. He is a registered auditor and his specialist areas of practice include business and corporate advisory as well as mergers and acquisitions. Mr Myers is chairman of the audit and risk committee (A&RC).

Effective 20 August 2014, Mr Myers was appointed the company's lead independent director.

During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Samuel Weiss

Non-executive director

AB, Harvard University; MS, Columbia Business School; FAICD

Mr Weiss has had a long corporate career in the United States, Europe and Australia with leading consumer brand companies such as Nike, Gateway Computers and Sheridan. He devotes considerable time and energy to education, the arts and disadvantaged communities through his work as a past president of the Harvard Club of Australia, president of The Benevolent Society and as a director of The Sydney Festival. Mr Weiss is chairman of the people and performance committee.

During the last three years he has served as a director of the following other listed companies:

- Altium Limited #
- OrotonGroup Ltd #
- iBuy Limited #
- 3P Learning Limited #
- iProperty Group Ltd
- GLG Corp Limited # denotes current directorship

John Schmoll

Non-executive director – resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013

B.Com, FCA, FAICD

Mr Schmoll completed his executive career on his retirement in 2002 as Chief Financial Officer of Coles Myer Ltd. Prior to this he held senior corporate and professional roles in Australia and South Africa including Arthur Young and Edgars Stores Ltd (South Africa's largest apparel and homewares retailer). Since his retirement he has accepted various non-executive director positions and undertaken some executive coaching roles.

During the last three years he has served as a director of the following other listed companies:

- OrotonGroup Ltd #
- Patties Foods Ltd #
- AWB Limited (March 2005 December 2010)
- # denotes current directorship

Directors' report continued

Company secretaries

The names and details of the company's company secretaries in office during the year and until the date of this report are as below. The company secretaries were in office for the periods as indicated below.

Mervyn Cohen

B.Com, B.Acc, CA

Mr Cohen is a chartered accountant and has over 20 years' experience in senior financial roles after beginning his career in Audit and Advisory. Mr Cohen is also Chief Financial Officer of the company, a position he had held since October 2006.

Sasha Kitto - appointed 26 June 2014

LLB, ACA

Ms Kitto is a chartered accountant and has over 15 years' experience as a practising chartered accountant and in senior finance roles.

Reporting currency and rounding

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars (\$'000) unless otherwise stated under the option available to the company under ASIC class order 98/100. The company is an entity to which the class order applies.

Performance indicators

Management and the board monitor the financial performance of the company by measuring actual results against expectations as developed through an annual business planning and budgeting process.

Appropriate key performance indicators (KPI's) are used to monitor operating performance and management effectiveness.

Operating and financial review

The operating and financial review has been designed to enhance the periodic financial reporting and provide shareholders with additional information regarding the Group's operations, financial position, business strategies and prospects. This review complements the financial report and has been prepared in accordance with the guidance set out in ASIC Regulatory Guide 247.

Company overview

The Group's underlying strategy is the design and development of innovative world class small electrical kitchen appliances and the effective marketing of these products across multiple geographies to drive growth in sales and profits.

In line with this strategy, the Group has:

- built and staffed a world class product development centre in Sydney;
- continued to invest in its design and development capabilities;
- maintained an efficient procurement and quality assurance centre in Hong Kong;
- increased its investment in growth driving marketing activities;
- employed experienced marketing and sales executives in its key markets around the world; and
- maintained an efficient and effective administration process to support growth initiatives on an international platform.

Principal activities

During the year, the principal activities of the Group were the innovation, development, marketing and distribution of small electrical appliances. In Australia and New Zealand, the Group trades under its company owned brands, *Breville, Kambrook* and *Ronson* and also distributes a range of Philips products in the personal care and garment care categories under a license agreement with Philips.

In North America, the Group distributes Breville branded products through premium channels. Up until 30 June 2013, the Group was also the primary distributor in Canada of a range of Keurig branded single serve coffee machines and portioned coffee capsules.

During May 2013, the Group launched a business in the UK marketing and distributing Breville designed premium flagship products under a new company owned brand, Sage.

The Group's Hong Kong office performs the functions of a group procurement and quality assurance centre and also, a supplier of primarily Breville designed products to distributors globally. These distributors are located outside of the Group's principal markets of Australia, New Zealand, North America and UK. The products sold to distributors located in Europe (excluding UK) are sold on a non-Breville branded basis. The products sold to distributors outside of Europe, including in the Asia Pacific region, the Middle East and South America, are Breville branded products.

Directors' report continued

Operating and financial review continued

Strategic initiatives

The Group continues to pursue a number of strategic growth initiatives including establishing important alliances with key industry participants and internationally recognised "food thinkers".

The Group has:

- Continued its investment in product development and marketing;
- Entered into the portioned coffee market in Australia and New Zealand in partnership with Nespresso;
- Increased its marketing and product development resources to support growth in the Rest of World segment;
- Launched into the UK;
- Continued to collaborate with Heston Blumenthal as the Group's global ambassador for global advertising and marketing communication;
- Subsequent to 30 June 2014, acquired the culinary division of the USA-based business PolyScience, one of the market leaders in the sous-vide category in the commercial and professional markets. The product range includes sous-vide, vacuum sealers and other complementary products.

Group operating results

Year to 30 June			
	2014 \$m	2013 \$m	% Change
Revenue	541.6	486.5	11.3%
EBITDA	77.9	78.9	(1.2%)
EBIT	70.4	71.6	(1.6%)
Net profit after taxation	48.8	49.7	(1.9%)
Earnings per share EPS (cents)	37.48	38.23	(1.9%)
Return on equity (%)	22.9%	24.7%	
Dividends per share (cents)	27.0	26.0	3.8%
Net cash (\$m)	47.0	43.4	

Minor differences may arise due to rounding

¹ ROE is calculated based on NPAT for the 12 months ended 30 June 2014 (2013: 12 months end 30 June 2013) divided by shareholders' equity at 30 June.

Revenue of the consolidated entity for the year was \$541.6m which was 11.3% higher than the consolidated revenue for the previous corresponding year of \$486.5m.

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) decreased 1.6% on the previous corresponding year to \$70.4m. This decrease was driven primarily by the decrease in Keurig commission income, following the cessation of the majority of the Keurig distribution arrangement in Canada in June 2013.

The Group's profit after income tax was \$48.8m which approximated the earnings of the previous corresponding year of \$49.7m.

The basic earnings per share for the consolidated entity was 37.48 cents per share (2013: 38.23 cents per share).

Segment results

Year to 30 June	REVENUE					
	2014	2013	%	2014	2013	%
	\$m	\$m	Change	\$m	\$m	Change
Australia and New Zealand	261.6	240.9	8.6%	24.9	27.3	(9.1%)
(ANZ)	201.0	240.3	0.070	24.5	21.5	(3.170)
	000.0	400.4	4.40/	00.4	07.0	(00 50/)
North America	200.2	192.4	4.1%	30.1	37.9	(20.5%)
	70.0		50.404		45 3	<u> </u>
Rest of World	79.8	51.1	56.1%	20.2	15.7	28.8%
Other	-	2.1		(4.7)	(9.3)	
Other	-	2.1		(4.7)	(9.5)	
TOTAL	541.6	486.5	11.3%	70.4	71.6	(1.6%)

Minor differences may arise due to rounding

Directors' report continued

Operating and financial review continued

ANZ

Overall, the ANZ business performed well and gained market share throughout the year in a retail market environment where consumers remained cautious with their spending.

Revenues of \$261.6m were 8.6% higher than the prior corresponding year. Despite increased revenues, a stronger USD over the period compared to the prior year especially in the second half placed increased pressure on the landed cost of products resulting in a fall in EBIT by 9.1% to \$24.9m (2013: \$27.3m). EBIT margin was also unfavourably impacted by a highly competitive marketplace.

North America

North American revenue for the year increased by 4.1% to \$200.2m despite a decline in Keurig commission income of \$15.4m to \$1.7m (2013: \$17.1m).

Full year sales revenue from Breville products of \$198.5m (2013: \$175.3m) increased by 13.2%.

Following a very strong first half result which recorded a 29.9% increase in revenue from Breville products, second half North American revenues from Breville products finished 8.4% lower than the prior corresponding period.

Second half revenue was adversely impacted by strong purchasing by major retailers late in the first half in anticipation of strong retail sales in post-Christmas trading, followed by adverse weather conditions which impacted many retailers.

In addition, the juicing category which had exhibited exponential growth over the past two and a half years, experienced increased competition and an overall decline as consumer demand shifted to blending in the second half.

Full year EBIT decreased by 20.5% from \$37.9m to \$30.1m primarily due to the fall in the high margin Keurig commission income.

Rest of World

Total revenue from this segment, comprising the rest of the world distribution business supplied from Hong Kong (previously the International Distributors segment) and for the first time, the new UK business, increased by 56.1% to \$79.8m and EBIT increased by 28.8% to \$20.2m (2013: \$15.7m).

The higher revenues were derived equally from the rest of world distribution business and the UK. The UK was recorded within the Group's Other reporting segment in the prior year given that trading commenced in May 2013.

Strong orders from European strategic partners and growth in the Middle East and Asian geographies contributed to the higher revenues from the rest of world distribution business.

The UK business delivered a positive earnings' result in its first full year of operation.

Other

Represents the Group's shared service facility, including the Group's design and development and global marketing functions. This segment also incurs the amortisation charge on capitalised product development projects. The movement from prior year is primarily attributable to a net over recovery of intra-group charges and lower group employee short term incentive expense. The prior year comparative includes revenues and costs associated with the UK business.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Consistent with the Group's intention of building awareness of its brands locally and internationally, the Group maintained its investment in growth driving marketing activities. The importance of online consumer research, reviews and communication continues to increase. The Group continues to invest in communicating its products' features and benefits through traditional and digital media, including emerging social media channels. In the online world of consumer reviews, consumer blogs and online sales, the quality and performance of Breville's products together with credible endorsements, will be a key to the Group's future success.

Directors' report continued

Operating and financial review continued

Financial position

The investment in working capital was marginally lower than the prior year. The level of inventory at year end increased by \$10.5m compared to the prior year as a result of the fall in juicer sales in North America in the second half and associated time lag to reset the procurement supply chain as well as a wider range of new products.

Trade and other receivables at year end were \$12.3m lower driven by the softer total North American revenue in the second half of the year (including substantially decreased Keurig commission income).

The Group's net cash position at 30 June 2014 was \$47.0m compared to \$43.4m at the same time last year.

Operating cash flow for the year was \$51.2m (2013: \$37.0m).

Capital expenditure

The Group continues to invest in efficiency and cost improvement projects to support a larger and more geographically diverse business.

In the second half of the 2014 financial year, the Australian distribution business relocated and commenced operating from a new leased distribution centre in Minto, New South Wales.

During the 2015 financial year, the Group will relocate its Sydney-based Australian business and corporate head office to new leased premises and will also during the first half of the 2015 year commence the implementation of a new Group-wide enterprise resource planning system (ERP).

Foreign exchange exposures

The Group operates in a number of countries and is subject to a number of exchange rate influences on its earnings.

Firstly, the Group has a *transactional* exposure as its product purchases are primarily paid for in US dollars. In Australia, New Zealand, Canada and the UK, the exchange rate impacts product costs as the US dollar changes relative to those currencies. A stronger US dollar will generally have a negative effect on the Group's reported earnings in terms of this *transactional* exposure.

The Group also has a *translational* exposure as its international earnings, a large portion of which are denominated in US dollars, are translated into Australian dollars for reporting purposes. A higher US dollar relative to the Australian dollar will generally have a positive effect on the Group's reported earnings in terms of this *translational* exposure.

The *transactional* and *translational* exposures are considered to result in a partial natural hedge from a Group perspective. A weak Australian dollar is likely to have an adverse impact on the Australian segment's earnings (as a result of higher landed costs) but a positive impact on the translation of non-Australian dollar denominated results.

Consumer demand risk

Given the Group's reliance on consumer discretionary spending, adverse changes to the general economic and retail landscape and consumer sentiment in the principal markets in which the Group operates, can impact its financial results. The Group mitigates this risk by continued communication with its consumers to gain greater insight into the changing world of food and beverage trends and by keeping abreast with global economic and consumer data and industry trends.

Margin risk

The highly competitive nature of the small domestic appliance market together with changes in manufacturing costs, including commodity prices, could have an impact on the Group's financial results. This risk is mitigated by protecting the Group's intellectual property, brand building initiatives, introducing elements of variability into its cost structure and strengthening its long term supplier relationships.

Group strategies and prospects

The ongoing investment in innovation and an increasing portfolio of some of the world's best kitchen products, provides a strong platform to expand the Group's geographic reach and continue to grow global volumes. Although the economic environment remains uncertain, our product development and brand management strengths and a strong balance sheet, mean that the Group is well positioned for the future and the growth opportunities that lie ahead.

Directors' report continued

Risk management

The company's risk management is discussed in the corporate governance statement on page 26.

Dividends

The following dividends have been paid, declared or recommended since the end of the preceding year.

	Cents per ordinary share	\$'000
Final dividends recommended:	13.0	16,912
Dividends paid in the year:		
Interim FY14 dividend paid	14.0	18,213
Final FY13 dividend paid	12.0	15,611

Significant changes in the state of affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the year that have not otherwise been disclosed in this report or the consolidated financial statements.

Directors' interests

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares or other instruments of Breville Group Limited were:

	Ordinary shares
S. Fisher	50,288
T. Antonie	-
S. Herman	8,000
D. Howell	100,000
S. Klein	117,189
L. Myers	10,000
S. Weiss	121,775

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited)

This remuneration report outlines the compensation arrangements in place for directors and executives (collectively "key management personnel") of Breville Group Limited. For the purposes of this report, key management personnel (KMP) of the group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the group, directly or indirectly.

Details of key management personnel

(i) Directors:	
S. Fisher	Non-executive chairman
T. Antonie	Non-executive director (appointed effective 19 December 2013)
S. Herman	Non-executive director
D. Howell	Non-executive director (resigned as chairman of audit and risk committee 19 December 2013)
S. Klein	Non-executive director
L. Myers	Non-executive director (appointed effective 1 September 2013) and chairman of audit and risk committee (appointed 19 December 2013)
J. Schmoll	Non-executive director (resigned as director 1 September 2013)
S. Weiss	Non-executive director and chairman of people and performance committee
(ii) Executives:	
J. Lord	Group chief executive officer
S. Brady	General manager - global marketing
M. Cohen	Group chief financial officer
C. Dais	Group general manager - business development and operations

There were no changes of key management personnel after the reporting date.

Compensation philosophy

The performance of the company depends, in part, upon the quality of its directors and executives. The company must attract, retain, motivate and develop highly skilled directors and executives in order to secure the short and long term success of the business so to enhance shareholder value.

Based on this philosophy, the company's compensation strategy and framework embodies two interrelated outcomes: improved business results and building a culture of high performance.

The following principles define the compensation framework:

- Provide competitive rewards (for fixed and variable compensation) to attract high calibre employees;
- Link reward to sustained growth in shareholder value from dividends and growth in share price and the delivery of a consistent return on assets;
- Link rewards with the strategic goals and performance of the company; and
- Reinforce a competitive business strategy to deliver organisational success and enhanced shareholder value.

People and performance committee

The people and performance committee of the board of directors of the company is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the board executive and employee remuneration arrangements and executive succession as set out in the people and performance committee charter.

The people and performance committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of compensation of executives and employees on an annual basis by reference to relevant individual and company performance and market conditions.

The people and performance committee is responsible for the engagement of any external compensation consultants for work on executive remuneration.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Compensation structure

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive compensation is separate and distinct.

Non-executive director compensation

Objective

The board seeks to set compensation at a level which provides the company with the ability to attract and retain directors of high calibre whilst maintaining a level commensurate with companies of a similar size and type.

Structure

The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate compensation of non-executive directors shall be determined from time to time by general meeting. The aggregate compensation of \$950,000 per year was approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting held in November 2010.

The compensation of non-executive directors is reviewed annually. Each director receives a fee for being a director of the company. An additional fee is also paid to each director who also acts as chairman of a board committee. The payment of additional fees for acting as chairman of a committee recognises the additional time commitment required by the director to facilitate the running of the committee.

The compensation of non-executive directors for the year ended 30 June 2014 is detailed in Table 1 on page 18 of this report.

Executive compensation

Objective

The company aims to remunerate and reward executives with a level and mix of compensation commensurate with their positions and responsibilities within the company and to:

- Reward executives for company and individual performance against specific targets set with reference to business objectives and results;
- Align the interest, focus and performance of the executives with those of the shareholders;
- Attract, retain and motivate high performing executives; and
- Ensure total compensation is competitive by market standards.

Structure

In determining the level and make-up of executive compensation, the people and performance committee may engage an external consultant as appropriate, to provide independent advice detailing market related levels of compensation. No such external consultants were engaged for the year ended 30 June 2014. The group chief executive officer makes recommendations to the people and performance committee for consideration.

Employment contracts are entered into with executives. Details of the contracts are provided on page 17.

Compensation consists of the following key elements:

- Fixed compensation
- Variable compensation
 - Short term incentive (STI); and
 - Long term incentive (LTI)

The proportion of the fixed compensation and variable compensation (potential short term and long term incentives) is established for each executive by the people and performance committee and approved by the board.

Table 3 on page 20 of this report details the components (%) of the compensation of key management personnel of the Group.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Fixed compensation

Objective

Fixed compensation is set to provide a base level of compensation which is appropriate to the position and responsibility and is competitive in the market.

Fixed compensation is reviewed annually by the people and performance committee. The process consists of reviewing company and individual performance, relevant comparative market compensation, internal relativities and, where appropriate, external advice on policies and practices.

Structure

Executives are given the opportunity to receive their fixed compensation in a variety of forms including cash and non-cash benefits.

Variable compensation - short term incentive (STI)

Objective

The objective of the STI plan is to reward executives and other employees on the achievement of company and individual value adding performance objectives established annually, providing them with the opportunity to earn over and above their fixed compensation should the agreed objectives be achieved. Depending upon their position and seniority in the organisation, executives and other employees are eligible for a STI award of between 20% - 50% of their fixed or base annual remuneration. The incentive payment is based on the achievement of financial and non-financial objectives, with the former dependant upon a multiplier in accordance with a sliding scale. Objectives for each participant are determined on an individual basis aligned to enhance shareholder value.

The principle objectives of the plan are:

- To ensure that the company delivers its primary financial results and achieves its targets every year to deliver sustainable performance and continued organisational growth;
- To achieve business goals through rewarding value adding individual performance;
- To contribute to the development of a performance culture across the company; and
- To promote and facilitate the concept of shared ownership whereby executives and employees who contribute to the success
 of the company will also share in that success.

The total potential STI available is set at a level to provide an incentive to the executives and employees to achieve and exceed personal, financial and operational targets.

Structure

Actual STI payments are determined on the basis of the achievement of specific targets and objectives set at the commencement of the year. Financial performance targets include net profit before tax. Individual objectives are aligned to the non-financial components of the Group strategy. The company has predetermined financial performance benchmarks which must be met in order to trigger payments under the STI plan and these are varied on a yearly basis in line with the annual budgeting process.

On an annual basis, after consideration of performance against the established targets/objectives, incorporating both company financial targets and individual objectives, the group chief executive officer recommends to the people and performance committee an amount, if any, of the STI payment each executive (excluding the group chief executive officer) is eligible to receive. This recommendation, together with a recommendation by the people and performance committee of an amount if any, of the STI payment the group chief executive officer is eligible to receive, is then put to the board for approval. The group chief executive officer may also award discretionary bonuses to recognise and reward key contributions from high performing employees. All discretionary bonuses are presented as recommendations to the people and performance committee and the board for approval.

The aggregate of the annual STI payments available for executives across the company is subject to the approval of the people and performance committee and the board and payments are typically paid in cash. The minimum amount of the STI payments assuming that no executives meet their respective targets/objectives (including company financial targets and individual objectives) for the 2014 financial year is nil (2013: nil).

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Variable compensation – long term incentive (LTI)

Objective

The objective of the LTI plan is to reward executives and other employees in a manner that aligns this element of compensation with the creation of shareholder value.

The LTI plan is only made available to executives and other employees who are able to influence the generation of shareholder value and have a direct impact on the company's performance against relevant long term performance hurdles. Depending upon their position and seniority in the organisation, executives and other employees are eligible for a LTI award of between 20% - 50% of their fixed annual compensation.

Structure - performance rights plan

LTI grants to executives and other employees (collectively "participants") are provided in the form of performance rights awards issued in accordance with the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan (PRP). LTI grants to participants (excluding the group chief executive officer) are recommended by the group chief executive officer to the people and performance committee. This recommendation, together with a recommendation by the people and performance committee of a LTI grant to the group chief executive officer, is then put to the board for approval.

An offer under the PRP grants a participant the right to a certain number of fully paid ordinary shares in the company. Upon satisfaction of the performance hurdles, the right will vest and be convertible into shares. The company uses time-based and financial-based hurdles. Earnings per share (EPS) is the financial-based performance hurdle for the LTI plan. EPS represents the earnings per share from operations adjusted for non-trading items. The use of EPS ensures an alignment between shareholder return and reward for participants.

In addition to the grant of performance rights awards which are subject to an EPS performance hurdle, performance rights awards may also be granted in accordance with the PRP as a retention award where the performance condition is continued employment with the company to vesting date.

If the performance hurdle is not met or if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, any unvested performance rights will lapse unless otherwise determined by the board. There are no cash alternatives. The performance rights cannot be transferred and are not quoted on the ASX. Holders of performance rights are not entitled to notice of, or attend, a meeting of shareholders of the company, or receive any dividends declared by the company, until the rights have vested and then converted into shares.

Once allocated, disposal of shares is subject to restrictions whereby board approval is required to sell the shares granted within three years of the shares being allocated to the participant or; if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, within twelve months of the date employment ceases; or such other date as the board determines.

In the event of a takeover bid where the bidder and its associates become entitled to at least 50% of the voting shares of the company, any performance rights granted will vest where the board, in its absolute discretion, is satisfied that pro rata performance is in line with any performance condition applicable to those performance rights. Any performance rights which do not vest will immediately lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.

Other

The number of ordinary shares in the company which could be acquired by executives and other employees holding performance rights if all outstanding performance rights were vested shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the company.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Variable compensation - long term incentive (LTI) continued

Relationship of rewards to performance

The table below shows the details of LTI plans for which compensation has been included in the remuneration tables on pages 18 and 19 of this report.

LTI Plan (for the year ended)	Performance hurdles/conditions	Number outstanding 30 June 2014 (Executive only)	Number outstanding 30 June 2013 (Executive only)
Performance rights June 2011	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights: (a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 must be at least 30.00 cents per share. (b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 must be at least 33.00 cents per share. 100% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	-	135,000
	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of three years and to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 must be at least 37.00 cents per share. 100% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	-	47,000
Performance rights June 2012	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights: (a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 must be at least 33.50 cents per share. (b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 must be at least 36.50 cents per share. - 0% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	152,000	152,000
	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of up to twenty four months: (a) 50% of the performance rights to vest, participants must be employed by the company on 3 December 2012. (b) 50% of the performance rights to vest, participants must be employed by the company on 2 December 2013. 100% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	-	34,500
Performance rights June 2013	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights: (a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 must be at least 43.22 cents per share. (b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 must be at least 47.33 cents per share. - 0% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	156,000	156,000
	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of 12 months and to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 must be at least 42.00 cents per share. Lapsed as at 30 June 2014. 	-	37,234^
Performance rights June 2014	 Issued for nil consideration. Exercise price is \$0. Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights: (c) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 must be at least 46.00 cents per share. (d) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 must be at least 49.20 cents per share. - 0% vested as at 30 June 2014. 	84,000	-

^ this represents an STI award provided to the CEO following his appointment pursuant to his contract.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Group performance

The table below shows the performance of the group over the past five years.

Year ended	30 June				
	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014
Underlying basic earnings per share (cents)	21.98	27.61	35.35	38.23	37.48
Basic earnings per share (cents)	17.44	24.47	35.35	38.23	37.48
Total dividends (cents)	11.00	16.50	24.00	26.00	27.00
Share price at 30 June (\$)	2.14	3.30	4.38	7.06	8.11

Employment contracts

None of the key management personnel have fixed term employment contracts. Amounts payable on termination vary from a minimum statutory entitlement to a maximum of 12 months based on a calculation of total fixed remuneration (which includes base salary, superannuation and allowances (if applicable)). In accordance with the terms of the performance rights plan, any performance rights not vested at the date of termination will be forfeited and shall lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.

Prohibition on hedging by key management personnel

The group has adopted a policy which prohibits key management personnel and their closely related parties from entering into an arrangement that has the effect of limiting the exposure of a member of the key management personnel to risk relating to an element of that member's compensation. The policy complies with the requirements of s.206J of the Corporations Act 2001.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Remuneration of key management personnel

Table 1: Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014

				Post-employ- ment benefits	Long-term employee benefits	Share-based payment	Total	
	Salary &	Cash	Other	Total short	Super-	Long service	Performance	
	fees	bonuses		term employee	annuation	leave	rights	
				benefits				
	\$	\$	\$		\$	\$	\$	\$
Non-executive directors								
S. Fisher – chairman	183,066	-	-	183,066	16,934	-	-	200,000
T. Antonie (a)	54,259	-	-	54,259	5,019	-	-	59,278
S. Herman	102,975	-	-	102,975	9,525	-	-	112,500
D. Howell	109,037	-	-	109,037	10,086	-	-	119,123
S. Klein (b)	112,500	-	-	112,500	-	-	-	112,500
L. Myers (c)	91,905	-	-	91,905	8,501	-	-	100,406
J. Schmoll (d)	17,823	-	-	17,823	1,649	-	-	19,472
S. Weiss	115,789	-	-	115,789	10,711	-	-	126,500
Sub-total non-executive directors	787,354	-	-	787,354	62,425	-	-	849,779
Other key management personnel								
S. Brady	304,854	-	30,000	334,854	30,974	4,952	62,460	433,240
M. Cohen	373,400	-	30,000	403,400	25,000	5,951	81,997	516,348
C. Dais	468,913	73,441	-	542,354	-	-	57,471	599,825
J. Lord	725,000	-	-	725,000	25,000	8,594	167,957	926,551
Sub-total executive KMP	1,872,167	73,441	60,000	2,005,608	80,974	19,497	369,885	2,475,964
Totals	2,659,521	73,441	60,000	2,792,962	143,399	19,497	369,885	3,325,743

Note

(a) T. Antonie was appointed 18 December 2013, effective 19 December 2013.

(b) S. Klein is a principal of the legal firm SBA Law. His director's fees (which are subject to GST) were paid to SBA Law and are shown above net of GST.

(c) L. Myers was appointed 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013.

(d) J. Schmoll resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Remuneration of key management personnel continued

Table 2: Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2013

	Short-term employee benefits				Post- employ-ment benefits	Long-term employee benefits	Share-based payment	Total
	Salary & fees	Cash bonuses	Other	Total short term employee benefits	Super- annuation	Long service leave	Performance rights / options	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Non-executive directors								
S. Fisher – chairman (a)	119,792	-	-	119,792	-	-	-	119,792
S. Herman (b)	34,139	-	-	34,139	3,073	-	-	37,212
D. Howell	116,055	-	-	116,055	10,445	-	-	126,500
S. Klein (c)	112,500	-	-	112,500	-	-	-	112,500
J Schmoll (d)	177,311	-	-	177,311	15,958	-	-	193,269
S. Weiss	116,055	-	-	116,055	10,445	-	-	126,500
Sub-total non-executive directors	675,852	-	-	675,852	39,921	-	-	715,773
Other key management personnel								
S. Brady	305,622	103,954	30,000	439,576	29,576	5,080	100,079	574,311
M. Cohen	373,400	139,024	30,000	542,424	25,000	6,035	160,701	734,160
C. Dais	399,124	111,335	-	510,459	-	-	52,373	562,832
J. Lord (e)	725,000	343,390	-	1,068,390	25,000	27,527	305,107	1,426,024
Sub-total executive KMP	1,803,146	697,703	60,000	2,560,849	79,576	38,642	618,260	3,297,327
Totals	2,478,998	697,703	60,000	3,236,701	119,497	38,642	618,260	4,013,100

Note

(a) S. Fisher was appointed chairman on 28 May 2013.

(b) S. Herman was appointed a director on 1 March 2013.

(c) S. Klein is a principal of the legal firm SBA Law. His director's fees (which are subject to GST) were paid to SBA Law and are shown above net of GST.

(d) J. Schmoll resigned as chairman on 28 May 2013.

(e) Cash bonuses includes \$100,000 paid in relation to services performed during J. Lord's tenure as Acting CEO.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Remuneration of key management personnel continued

Table 3: Key management personnel compensation mix

	Fixed compe	ensation	Short term in	ncentive	Long term inc	entive (a)
Name	2014	2013	2014	2013	2014	2013
Non-executive directors						
S. Fisher	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
T. Antonie (b)	100.00%	-	-	-	-	-
S. Herman	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
D. Howell	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
S. Klein	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
L. Myers (c)	100.00%	-	-	-	-	-
J. Schmoll	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
S. Weiss	100.00%	100.00%	-	-	-	-
Other key management						
personnel						
S. Brady	85.58%	64.47%	-	18.10%	14.42%	17.43%
M. Cohen	84.12%	59.17%	-	18.94%	15.88%	21.89%
C. Dais	78.18%	70.91%	12.24%	19.78%	9.58%	9.31%
J. Lord	81.87%	54.52%	-	24.08%	18.13%	21.40%

(a) LTI values are based on the accounting value of performance rights.

(b) T. Antonie became key management personnel on 19 December 2013.

(c) L. Myers became key management personnel on 1 September 2013.

Table 4: Other key management personnel cash bonuses and share-based compensation

	Cash bonu	ISES	Share-based compensation			
	% Earned	% Forfeited	Year	% Vested	% Forfeited	
Name	2014	2014	granted	2014	2014	
S. Brady	-	100.00%	2014	-	-	
-			2013	-	-	
			2012	-	-	
			2011	100.00%	-	
M. Cohen	-	100.00%	2014	-	-	
			2013	-	-	
			2012	15.18%	-	
			2011	100.00%	-	
C. Dais	53.05%	46.95%	2014	-	-	
			2013	-	-	
			2012	-	-	
			2011	-	-	
J. Lord	-	100.00%	2014	-	-	
			2013	-	-	
			2012	26.26%	-	
			2011	100.00%	-	

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Remuneration of key management personnel continued

Table 5: Shareholdings of key management personnel

Ordinary shares held* in Breville Group Limited (number)

30 June 2014	Balance at 1 July 2013	On exercise of performance rights	Net change other (a)	Balance at 30 June 2014
Directors				
S. Fisher	50,288	-	-	50,288
T. Antonie	-	-	-	-
S. Herman	8,000	-	-	8,000
D. Howell	100,000	-	-	100,000
S. Klein	117,189	-	-	117,189
L. Myers	-	-	10,000	10,000
J. Schmoll (b)	100,000	-	(100,000)	-
S. Weiss	121,775	-	-	121,775
Other key management personnel				
S. Brady	276,732	39,000	-	315,732
C. Dais	-	-	-	-
M. Cohen	305,500	72,500	(70,000)	308,000
J. Lord	220,000	105,000	(40,000)	285,000
Total	1,299,484	216,500	(200,000)	1,315,984

30 June 2013	Balance at 1 July 2012	On exercise of performance rights	Net change other (a)	Balance at 30 June 2013
Directors				
S. Fisher	50,288	-	-	50,288
S. Herman	-	-	8,000	8,000
D. Howell	100,000	-	-	100,000
S. Klein	117,189	-	-	117,189
J. Schmoll	100,000	-	-	100,000
S. Weiss	121,775	-	-	121,775
Other key management personnel				
S. Brady	300,645	43,000	(66,913)	276,732
C. Dais	-	-	-	-
M. Cohen	279,000	56,500	(30,000)	305,500
J. Lord	134,000	86,000	-	220,000
Total	1,202,897	185,500	(88,913)	1,299,484

* Held directly, indirectly or beneficially.

(a) All equity transactions with key management personnel other than those arising from the exercise of remuneration options have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the group would have adopted if dealing at arm's length.

(b) J. Schmoll resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013 and ceased to be key management personnel on that date.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Performance rights

Table 6: Performance rights granted

The terms and conditions of each grant of performance rights affecting remuneration of key management personnel in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows:

Grant Date *	First exercise date	Last exercise date	Expiry date	Exercise price	Fair value per performance right at grant date (\$) (Note 27)	Vested and exercised 30 June 2014	Vested and exercised 30 June 2013
22 Dec 10 (a)	3 Sept 12	5 Oct 12	5 Oct 12	0.00	2.64	-	100%
22 Dec 10 (b)	2 Sept 13	4 Oct 13	4 Oct 13	0.00	2.54	100%	-
20 Apr 11 (c)	2 Sept 13	4 Oct 13	4 Oct 13	0.00	3.32	1 00 %	-
12 Oct 11 (d)	1 Sept 14	3 Oct 14	3 Oct 14	0.00	2.41	-	-
23 Dec 11 (e)	3 Dec 12	4 Jan 13	4 Jan 13	0.00	2.47	-	100%
23 Dec 11 (f)	2 Dec 13	3 Jan 14	3 Jan 14	0.00	2.33	100%	-
2 Oct 12 (g)	3 Sept 15	5 Oct 15	5 Oct 15	0.00	4.73	-	-
2 Oct 12 (h)	3 Oct 13	5 Nov 13	5 Nov 13	0.00	5.19	100%	-
2 Oct 12 (i)	3 Oct 14	5 Nov 14	5 Nov 14	0.00	4.95	-	-
2 Oct 12 (j)	2 Sept 13	4 Oct 13	4 Oct 13	0.00	5.21	-	-
4 Oct 13 (k)	2 Sept 16	5 Oct 16	5 Oct 16	0.00	7.61	-	-

- (a) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights granted Base EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2012 is at least 26.50 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2012 is at least 29.00 cents per share).
- (b) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights granted Base EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 is at least 30.00 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 is at least 33.00 cents per share).
- (c) Group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 is at least 37.00 cents per share.
- (d) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights granted Base EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 is at least 33.50 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 is at least 36.50 cents per share).
- (e) Performance condition being that participants must be employed by the company on 3 December 2012.
- (f) Performance condition being that participants must be employed by the company on 2 December 2013.
- (g) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance shares granted Base EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 43.22 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS is at least 47.33 cents per share).
- (h) Performance condition being that participant must be employed on 3 October 2013.
- (i) Performance condition being that participant must be employed on 3 October 2014.
- (j) Group EPS for the year ending 30 June 2013 is at least 42.00 cents per share. This performance right lapsed during the year to 30 June 2014, due to a failure to satisfy the performance criteria.
- (k) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance shares granted Base EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016, is at least 46.00 cents per share) and stretch EPS (group underlying EPS is at least 49.20 cents per share).
- * In addition to the EPS performance hurdle, the participant must be employed by the company on the vesting date.

Directors' report continued

Remuneration report (audited) continued

Performance rights continued

Table 7: Performance rights and options holdings of key management personnel

30 June 2014	Balance 30 June 2013	Granted as remuneration (a)	Vested and exercised	Other (b)	Balance 30 June 2014
Other key management					
personnel					
S. Brady	94,000	12,000	(39,000)	-	67,000
M. Cohen	135,500	15,000	(72,500)	-	78,000
C. Dais	53,000	14,000	-	-	67,000
J. Lord	279,234	43,000	(105,000)	(37,234)	180,000
	561,734	84,000	(216,500)	(37,234)	392,000

30 June 2013	Balance 30 June 2012	Granted as remuneration (a)	Vested and exercised	Other (b)	Balance 30 June 2013
Other key management personnel					
S. Brady	117,000	20,000	(43,000)	-	94,000
M. Cohen	168,000	24,000	(56,500)	-	135,500
C. Dais	31,000	22,000	-	-	53,000
J. Lord	238,000	127,234	(86,000)	-	279,234
	554,000	193,234	(185,500)	-	561,734

(a) All performance awards granted during the year are subject to EPS performance hurdles and remaining in employment until date of vesting.(b) Includes lapses.

Other transactions and balances with key management personnel and their related parties services

Mr Klein is a principal of SBA Law and his director's fees are paid to SBA Law. These fees are subject to GST.

Fees totalling \$287,482 (inclusive of GST), including Mr Klein's director's fees, were invoiced by SBA Law during the current financial year (2013: \$336,514). These fees were all on arm's length terms.

Total amounts recognised at the reporting date in relation to other transactions and balances with key management personnel:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Liabilities		
Current liabilities	40	21
Total liabilities	40	21
Revenues & expenses		
Employee expenses (director's fees)	113	113
Professional fees	148	193
Total expenses	261	306

The amounts shown above are GST exclusive.

Directors' report continued

Directors' meetings

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each director was as follows:

	Full board	Audit & risk (A&RC)	People and performance
Number of meetings	13	4	3
S. Fisher (a)	13(c)	4	3
T. Antonie (b)	6	n/a	n/a
S. Herman (d)	13	n/a	3
D. Howell	13	4	3
S. Klein (a)	13	4	2
L. Myers (e)	11	3(c)	2
J. Schmoll (e)	2	1	1
S. Weiss	13	4	3(c)

Notes

- (a) S. Fisher and S. Klein resigned from the audit and risk committee effective 20 August 2014.
- (b) T. Antonie was not a director for the full year and is not a member of either the audit and risk committee or the people and performance committee.
- (c) Designates the current chairman of the board or committee.
- (d) S. Herman is not a member of the audit and risk committee but is a member of the people and performance committee.
- (e) L. Myers and J. Schmoll were not directors for the full year.

Committee membership

As at the date of this report, the company had an audit and risk committee and a people and performance committee. The details of the functions and memberships of the committees are presented in the corporate governance statement.

Indemnification of directors and officers

The directors and officers of the company are indemnified by the company against losses or liabilities which they may sustain or incur as an officer of the company in the proper performance of their duties. During the financial year, the company paid premiums in respect of contracts to insure the directors and officers of the company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of liability and the amount of the premiums.

Indemnification of auditors

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young, as part of the terms of its audit engagement agreement, against all claims by third parties arising from the audit, except to the extent that any losses are due to Ernst & Young's negligent, wrongful or wilful acts or omissions. No payments have been made to indemnify Ernst & Young during or since the financial year.

Likely developments and expected results

Disclosure of information as to likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and expected results of those operations would be prejudicial to the interests of the consolidated entity. Accordingly, such information has not been included in this report.

Environmental regulations and performance

The consolidated entity is not involved in any activities that have a marked influence on the environment within its area of operation.

Corporate governance

In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Breville Group Limited support the principles of good corporate governance. The company's corporate governance statement is on page 26.

Directors' report continued

Performance rights

Unissued shares

As at the date of this report and the reporting date, there were 920,000 potential unissued shares under performance rights (2013: 838,500). Refer to note 27 of the financial report for further details of the performance rights outstanding. Performance right holders do not have any right, by virtue of the performance right, to participate in any share issue of the company.

Lapse of unvested performance rights

During the year, 37,234 unvested performance rights lapsed as performance hurdles were not met (2013: 131,000 following the cessation of employment of employees or executives).

Auditor's declaration of independence

Attached is a copy of the auditor's declaration provided under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit for the year ended 30 June 2014. This auditor's declaration forms part of this directors' report.

Non-audit services

During the financial year ended 30 June 2014 the company's primary auditor, Ernst & Young Australia did not provide any non-audit services.

Significant events after year end

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the year which significantly affected or may affect the operations of the consolidated entity.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Proto

Steven Fisher Non-executive chairman Sydney 20 August 2014

Corporate governance statement

The board of directors is responsible for the corporate governance practices of the company and is committed to adhering to the Australian Securities Exchange ('ASX') Corporate Governance Council ('council') 'Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations'.

The ASX principles that have been adopted are outlined below.

The company's corporate governance practices throughout the year ended 30 June 2014 were compliant with the council's principles and recommendations, except for those differences disclosed and explained in this statement. The following documents are available on the investor relations, corporate governance section of the company's website **brevillegroup.com**

- selection and appointment of directors
- criteria for assessing independence
- code of conduct
- continuous disclosure policy
- share trading policy
- shareholder communications policy
- board charter
- audit and risk committee charter
- people and performance committee charter
- diversity policy

The term of the current directors as at the date of this annual report are as follows:

Director	Appointed	Term in office	Non-executive	Independent	Last elected
Steven Fisher (chairman)	2004	10 years	Yes	No	2013
Tim Antonie ¹	2013	0 years	Yes	No	-
Sally Herman	2013	1 years	Yes	No	2013
Dean Howell ¹	2008	6 years	Yes	Yes	2011
Steven Klein ¹	2003	11 years	Yes	No	2011
Lawrence Myers	2013	0 years	Yes	Yes	2013
Samuel Weiss ¹	2008	6 years	Yes	Yes	2011

1. In accordance with the requirements of the company's constitution, Mr Antonie (appointed effective 19 December 2013) will seek election and Mr Howell, Mr Klein and Mr Weiss will seek re-election at the company's AGM later this year.

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for

management and oversight

Role of the board and management

The board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the company on behalf of the shareholders, by whom it is elected and to whom it is accountable. The board has adopted formal guidelines for board operation and membership. These guidelines outline the roles and responsibilities of the board and its members and establish the relationship between the board and management.

The board is responsible for approving the strategic direction of the company, establishing goals for management, monitoring the achievement of those goals and establishing a sound system of risk oversight and management. The board will regularly review its performance and the performance of its committees.

Appointment of board members

A detailed process is undertaken for the appointment of new board members, including appropriate checks as to background, history and any potential conflicts of interest.

Diversity policy

The company is an equal opportunity employer and values differences such as gender, age, culture, disability, ethnicity and lifestyle choices. The company's diversity policy aims to ensure a corporate culture that supports workplace diversity whilst providing access to equal opportunities at work based on merit. This policy is available on the company's website at the investor relations, corporate governance section and is subject to periodic review by, and may be changed by resolution of the board. The policy has no contractual effect.

Diversity policy objectives

The objectives set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them are:

- Representation of women trained in recruitment and selection panels: Progress was made in Australia during the year with further women being trained;
- Issuing the company equal opportunity statement to recruiting agencies: This continued in Australia during the year;
- Explicit requirement of recruiting agencies to provide a gender balance of suitable, qualified, shortlisted candidates for interview: This initiative achieved further progress during the year;

Corporate governance statement continued

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for

management and oversight continued

Diversity policy objectives continued

- Promoting a safe workplace free from harassment or discrimination of any kind: Training and education programs which included topics on harassment, bullying, victimisation and discrimination were conducted in Australia and the United Kingdom during the year;
- Enhancing the gender balance of women in career development for those in senior and managerial roles; and
- Continue flexible working arrangements where operationally appropriate.

The proportion of women employees in the company and the current targets are as follows:

	30 June 2013	30 June 2014	Target by June 2015
Women on the board Women in senior executive	17%	14%	25%
roles	17%	17%	20%
Women in senior roles Women in company	25% 50%	26% 55%	30% 50%

Senior executives are direct reports to the CEO or a business unit manager. Senior roles include senior executives and direct reports to senior executives or other employees with a strategically important role.

To assist the board in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to diversity, the implementation of these objectives is overseen by the people and performance committee.

The people and performance committee shall:

- report to the board at least annually, on the company's progress in achieving the objectives set for achieving gender diversity;
- regularly oversee a review of the relative proportion of women across the company and their relative positions; and
- consider other initiatives to promote diversity in the workplace.

Workplace equality

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Act), Breville Pty Limited lodged its annual compliance report with the Workplace Gender Equality Agency. This report is available on the company's website.

Evaluating the performance of the board

There is no formal review process of the performance of the board, its committees and individual directors. Currently, the chairman informally assesses the performance of committees and individual directors and their contribution to board affairs.

Evaluating the performance of key executives

The performance of key executives is reviewed against specific and measurable qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and includes:

- financial measures of the company's performance;
- development and achievement of strategic objectives;
- development of management and staff;
 compliance with legislative and company policy
- requirements; andachievement of key performance indicators.

Performance evaluation

All key executives were subject to a performance review as described above during the reporting period.

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value

Board composition

The company's constitution states that there must be a minimum of three directors and contains detailed provisions concerning the tenure of directors. The board currently comprises seven non-executive directors. The directors' report, on pages 5 and 6, outlines the relevant skills, experience and expertise held by each director in office at the date of this report.

In accordance with good corporate governance, where the chairman of the board is not an independent director, the board considers it to be useful and appropriate to designate an independent director to serve in a lead capacity to coordinate the activities of the other independent directors, including acting as principal liaison between the independent directors and the chairman and representing the board as the lead independent director when the chairman is unable to do so because of his non independent status.

Effective 20 August 2014, Mr Myers was appointed the company's lead independent director.

Director independence

In considering whether a director is independent, the board refers to the company's "Criteria for assessing independence of directors" which is consistent with the council's recommendations. Independent directors of the company are those that are not involved in the day-to-day management of the company and are free from any real or reasonably perceived business or other relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

In accordance with the definition of independence above, and the materiality thresholds outlined in the company's policy 'Criteria for assessing independence of directors', it is the board's view that Mr Dean Howell, Mr Lawrence Myers and Mr Samuel Weiss are independent directors. The following directors are not independent directors:

- Mr Steven Fisher (non-executive chairman) is employed by an entity associated with a substantial shareholder of the company;
- Mr Tim Antonie (non-executive director) is a nonexecutive director of Premier Investments Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the company; and

Corporate governance statement continued

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value continued

Director independence continued

- Ms Sally Herman (non-executive director) is a nonexecutive director of Premier Investments Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the company; and
- Mr Steven Klein (non-executive director) is a principal of SBA Law which is a professional adviser to the company.

Regardless of whether directors are defined as independent, all directors are expected to bring independent views and judgement to board deliberations.

Material personal interest requirement

The Corporations Act provides that unless agreed by the board, where any director has a material personal interest in a matter, the director will not be permitted to be present during discussions, or to vote on the matter.

Access to independent advice

There are procedures in place to enable directors, in connection with their duties and responsibilities as directors, to seek independent professional advice at the expense of the company. Prior written approval of the chairman is required, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

Board committees

The board has established the audit and risk committee and people and performance committee to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed consideration of complex issues. The composition of these committees is shown on page 24.

Nomination committee

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the company did not have a separately established nomination committee. All duties and responsibilities typically delegated to such a committee are the responsibility of the full board. Although the council's recommendation 2.4 recommends that a nomination committee can be a more efficient mechanism for the detailed examination of selection and appointment practices, particularly in larger companies, the board does not believe at this time that any marked efficiencies or enhancements would be achieved by the creation of a separate nomination committee.

Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible decision-making

Code of conduct

The board has formally adopted a code of conduct ("code") for all employees (including directors). The code aims at maintaining the highest ethical standards, corporate behaviour and accountability across the Group. These obligations are also consistent with the duties imposed on directors by the Corporations Act. In addition, directors are obliged to be independent in judgement and to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to be satisfied as to the soundness of board decisions.

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

Audit and risk committee

The board has an audit and risk committee (A&RC), which operates under a charter approved by the board. It is the board's responsibility to ensure that an effective internal control framework exists within the consolidated entity. This includes internal controls to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes, the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information. The board has delegated the responsibility for the establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal control and ethical standards of the company to the A&RC.

Among its responsibilities, the A&RC:

- ensures that company accounting policies and practices are in accordance with current and emerging accounting standards;
- reviews all accounts of the Group to be publicly released;
- recommends to the board the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors;
- reviews the scope of external audits;
- assesses the performance and independence of the external auditors, including procedures governing partner rotation;
- reviews corporate governance practices; and
- monitors and assesses the systems for internal compliance and control, legal compliance and risk management.

Composition of committee

The members of the A&RC as at the date of this report are:

- Mr Lawrence Myers (chairman)
- Mr Dean Howell
- Mr Samuel Weiss

Effective 20 August 2014, Mr Steven Fisher and Mr Steven Klein resigned from the A&RC.

The directors' report, on page 24, outlines the number of A&RC meetings held during the year and the names of the attendees at those meetings. It also outlines the qualifications of A&RC members on pages 5 and 6.

The group chief executive officer; company secretary; group chief financial officer; the external auditors and any other persons considered appropriate may attend meetings of the A&RC by invitation. The committee also meets from time to time with the external auditors independent of management.

In accordance with the council's recommendation 4.2, the A&RC is structured so that it:

- comprises only non-executive directors;
- comprises only independent directors;
- is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the board; and
- has at least three members.

Corporate governance statement continued

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting continued

Composition of committee continued

In accordance with the council's recommendation 4.2 the group chief executive officer and group chief financial officer provided the board with a written declaration confirming that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system operated effectively in all material respects.

Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure

The company's continuous disclosure policy complies with the council's recommendation 5.1. This policy is available on the company's website at the investor relations, corporate governance section.

Principle 6: Respect the rights of shareholders

Communication policy

The company is committed to providing all shareholders with comprehensive, timely and equal access to information about its activities to enable them to make informed investment decisions. The company's shareholder communication policy is available on the company's website at the investor relations, corporate governance section.

Electronic communication

The company's website displays recent ASX announcements and contains information about the company.

Briefings

The company keeps a record of briefings held with investors and analysts, including a record of those present and the time and place of the meeting.

Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk

The company is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its business activities including financial, operational, compliance, ethical conduct, brand and product quality risks. The company has embedded in its management and reporting systems a number of risk management controls. These include:

- guidelines and limits for approval of capital expenditure;
- policies and procedures for the management of financial risk and treasury operations including exposures to foreign currencies and movements in interest rates;
- annual budgeting and monthly reporting systems for all businesses which enable the monitoring of progress against performance targets and the evaluation of trends;

policies and procedures which enable management of the company's material business risks;

formal strategic planning sessions; and

 presentation of periodic reports to the board and the A&RC identifying items that represent a potential risk and the manner in which these are being managed and responded to.

Breville does not have an internal audit function and management is ultimately responsible to the board for the system of internal control and risk management and has reported to the board as to the effectiveness of the company's management of its material business risks. The A&RC assists the board in monitoring this function.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the company did not have a separately established risk committee. All duties and responsibilities typically delegated to such a committee are the responsibility of the full board, with assistance from the A&RC.

Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly

People and performance committee

The board has a people and performance committee, comprising the following directors as at the date of this report:

- Mr Samuel Weiss (chairman)
- Mr Steven Fisher
- Ms Sally Herman
- Mr Dean Howell
- Mr Lawrence Myers

In accordance with the council's recommendation 8.1, the people and performance committee comprises:

- an independent chairman; and
- at least three members.

The majority of the people and performance committee is considered to be independent as at the date of this report, although of the five committee members, Mr Steven Fisher and Ms Sally Herman are considered not to be independent for the reasons noted above.

For details on the number of meetings of the people and performance committee held during the year and the attendees at those meetings, refer to the directors' report on page 24.

Remuneration disclosure

For details of the company's remuneration philosophy and framework, and the remuneration received by directors and executives in the current period, please refer to the remuneration report contained in the directors' report on pages 12 to 23.

Income statement

for the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
			<u> </u>
Revenue	2(a)	541,615	486,547
Cost of sales	2(b)	(365,421)	(308,405)
Gross profit		176,194	178,142
Other income	2(c)	1,386	967
Employee benefits expenses	2(f)	(48,023)	(50,850)
Restructure costs (net)		-	(801)
Premises, lease & utilities expenses		(10,911)	(10,735)
Advertising and marketing expenses		(25,393)	(23,021)
Other expenses		(15,306)	(14,838)
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation & amortisation (EBITDA)		77,947	78,864
Depreciation & amortisation expense	2(d)	(7,499)	(7,252)
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)		70,448	71,612
Finance costs	2(g)	(1,939)	(1,656)
Finance income	2(g)	863	1,328
Profit before income tax		69,372	71,284
Income tax expense	3	(20,607)	(21,552)
Net profit after income tax for the year attributable to members of			
Breville Group Limited		48,765	49,732
		Cents	Cents
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of Breville Group Limited:			
- basic earnings per share	4	37.48	38.23
- diluted earnings per share	4	37.48	38.23
	•		00.20

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Net profit after income tax for the year		48,765	49,732
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss			
Foreign currency translation differences	20(a)	(690)	5,279
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges	20(c)	(4,089)	1,627
Income tax on other comprehensive income and other items taken	- (-)		7 -
directly to equity	3	1,794	871
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of income			
tax		(2,985)	7,777
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to			
members of Breville Group Limited		45,780	57,509

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of comprehensive income.



Statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Current assets			
	6	70 995	69 120
Cash and cash equivalents Trade and other receivables	6 7	70,885 78,442	68,130 90,770
Inventories	8	94,274	83,751
Other financial assets	9	7	2,110
Current tax assets	3	1,110	804
Other assets	10	2,629	2,833
Total current assets	10	247,347	248,398
Non-current assets			
	11	6 960	2 720
Plant and equipment Deferred tax assets	11 3	6,860 7,164	3,739 8,208
Intangible assets – other	3 12	50,333	8,208 47,663
Intangible assets – goodwill	12	24,558	24,558
Total non-current assets	15	88,915	84,168
Total assets		336,262	332,566
		000,202	332,300
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	15	81,793	82,266
Borrowings	16	56	13,630
Current tax liabilities	3	5,037	9,102
Provisions	17	9,056	13,041
Other financial liabilities	18	1,967	13
Total current liabilities		97,909	118,052
Non-current liabilities			
Other payables		-	616
Borrowings	16	23,780	11,070
Provisions	17	1,527	1,632
Total non-current liabilities		25,307	13,318
Total liabilities		123,216	131,370
Net assets		213,046	201,196
Equity			
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent			
Issued capital	19	140,050	138,368
Reserves	20	(11,938)	(7,165)
Retained earnings	21	84,934	69,993
Total equity		213,046	201,196

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2014

	Note	Issued capital	Reserves	Retained earnings	Total equity
		\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
At 1 July 2012		138,760	(14,783)	53,435	177,412
Foreign currency translation reserve	20(a)	_	5,279	_	5,279
Cash flow hedges	20(a) 20(c)		1,627		1,627
Income tax on items taken directly to equity	3		871		871
Net income recognised directly in equity	0	-	7,777	-	7,777
Profit for the year		-	-	49,732	49,732
Total recognised income for the year		-	7,777	49,732	57,509
Dividends paid Ordinary shares acquired by the Trustee of the Breville	5(a)	-	-	(33,174)	(33,174)
Group Performance Share Plan Trust	19(b)	(1,883)	-	-	(1,883)
Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan	19(b)	1,491	(1,491)	-	- (1,000)
Share-based payments	20(b)	-	1.332	-	1,332
At 30 June 2013		138,368	(7,165)	69,993	201,196
Foreign currency translation reserve	20(a)	-	(690)	-	(690)
Cash flow hedges	20(c)	-	(4,089)	-	(4,089)
Income tax on items taken directly to equity	3	-	1,794	-	1,794
Net income recognised directly in equity		-	(2,985)	-	(2,985)
Profit for the year		-	-	48,765	48,765
Total recognised income for the year		-	(2,985)	48,765	45,780
Dividends paid	5(a)	-	-	(33,824)	(33,824)
Ordinary shares acquired by the Trustee of the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust	19(b)	(1,041)			(1,041)
Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan	19(b) 19(b)	2,723	- (2,723)		(1,041)
Share-based payments	20(b)	2,723	935	-	- 935
At 30 June 2014	20(0)	140,050	(11,938)	84,934	213,046

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of changes in equity.

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Cash flows from operating activities			
Receipts from customers		592,001	633,869
Payments to suppliers and employees		(514,005)	(574,924)
Payment for surrender of lease		(5,445)	(074,024)
Finance costs paid		(1,939)	(1,656)
Income tax paid		(20,323)	(21,661)
Finance income received		863	1,328
Net cash flows from operating activities	6(b)	51,152	36,956
		,	00,000
Cash flows used in investing activities			
Purchase of plant and equipment		(4,268)	(1,007)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment		33	63
Purchase of intangible assets		(8,360)	(8,187)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets		228	-
Net cash flows used in investing activities		(12,367)	(9,131)
			<u> </u>
Cash flows used in financing activities			
Proceeds from borrowings		49,577	34,444
Repayment of borrowings		(48,726)	(16,767)
Irretrievable cash contributions paid to the Trustee of the Breville			
Group Performance Share Plan Trust to acquire ordinary shares	19(b)	(1,041)	(1,883)
Equity dividends paid	5(a)	(33,824)	(33,174)
Net cash flows used in financing activities		(34,014)	(17,380)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		4,771	10,445
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		66.550	53.082
Net foreign exchange difference		(436)	3,082
Net foreign exchange unerence		(430)	3,023
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	6(a)	70,885	66,550

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this cash flow statement.

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Breville Group Limited is a for profit company limited by shares incorporated in Australia. Breville Group Limited shares are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange.

This financial report covers the consolidated entity comprising Breville Group Limited and its subsidiaries (company or group).

A description of the group's operations and of its principal activities is included in the operating and financial review in the directors' report on pages 7 to 10. The directors' report is unaudited (except for the remuneration report) and does not form part of the financial report.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001* and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars (\$'000) unless otherwise stated under the option available to the company under ASIC class order 98/100. The company is an entity to which the class order applies.

(b) Statement of compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Breville Group Limited and its subsidiaries as at 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period, using consistent accounting policies. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intergroup balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and loss resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group. The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Impairment of goodwill & intangibles with indefinite useful lives

The group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated. The assumptions used in this estimation of recoverable amount and the carrying amount of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are discussed in note 14.

Share-based payment transactions

The group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using either the Black-Scholes or binomial option pricing model, using the assumptions detailed in note 27.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions continued

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective group company's domicile. As the group assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash outflow with respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Warranty and faulty goods

Provision for warranty and faulty goods is recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the group's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the group's liability. Factors that could impact the estimated claim information include the success of the group's productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts and labour costs. The related carrying amounts are disclosed in note 17.

Provision for make-good

The provision for make-good represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of restoration of leased premises under contracts that have clauses potentially requiring these premises to be restored to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The estimate may vary as a result of negotiations between the parties at the end of the lease term. The related carrying amounts are disclosed in note 17.

(e) Business combinations

All identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair value of the group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(f) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including certain inter-group revenues and expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision makers being the group chief executive officer and board of directors.

Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 Operating Segments are reported separately. However, an operating segment that does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported separately where information about the segment would be useful to the users of the financial report.

(g) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Both the functional and presentation currency of Breville Group Limited and its Australian subsidiaries are Australian dollars (AUD or A\$). Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of the foreign subsidiaries is either:

- USD United States dollars (Breville Holdings USA, Inc. and Breville USA, Inc.);
- HKD Hong Kong dollars (HWI International Limited);
- CAD Canadian dollars (HWI Canada, Inc., Holding HWI Canada, Inc. and Breville Canada, L.P.);
- NZD New Zealand dollars (Breville New Zealand Limited);
- GBP British pounds (BRG Appliances Limited); and
- RMB Chinese Renminbi (Breville Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited).

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(g) Foreign currency translation continued

(ii) Transactions and balances continued

As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of Breville Group Limited. They are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The exchange differences arising on the retranslation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

(iii) Disposal of foreign operations

In some instances companies in the Breville Group provide intra group funding to other group entities by way of permanent equity loans. In these instances any foreign exchange movements are recognised in equity (foreign currency translation reserve) as these equity loans are considered to form part of the net investment in the subsidiary.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Bad debts are written off when incurred. An allowance for uncollectible receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the allowance is recognised in the income statement.

(j) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. This includes the transfer from equity of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of purchases of finished goods. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on a weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The group may use derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify for hedge accounting, are taken directly to the income statement for the year.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts are calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles and where applicable exercise prices. The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable either to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or to a forecast transaction.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

When accounting for foreign exchange option contracts, the intrinsic value of the option is the only component subject to the hedging relationship. The time value of money is excluded from the hedge relationship.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(k) Derivative financial instruments and hedging continued

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the group's exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and that could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective portion is recognised in income statement.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged income or expenses are recognised or when a forecast purchase occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is taken to the income statement.

A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is accounted for as a cash flow hedge.

(I) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of between 2 and 10 years.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each year end.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the time of derecognition) is included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

(m) Intangible assets - goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination shall, from the acquisition date, be allocated to each of the group's cash generating units, or groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level within the group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. When goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit and an operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this manner is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained.

Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

(n) Intangible assets - other

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(n) Intangible assets - other continued

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed each reporting period to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an internal project is recognised only when the group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Any expenditure so capitalised is amortised over the period of expected benefits from the related project.

The carrying value of an intangible asset arising from development expenditure is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. A summary of the policies applied to the group's intangible assets is as follows:

Brand names	
Internally	Acquired
generated or	
Acquired	
Useful lives	Indefinite
Amortisation	No amortisation
method used	
Impairment	Annually and more frequently when an indication
test	of impairment exists.
Computer softw	
Internally	Internally generated and acquired
generated or	
Acquired	
Useful lives	Finite
Amortisation	Amortised over the useful life, not exceeding 3
method used	years, on a straight line basis.
Impairment	When an indication of impairment exists. The
test	amortisation method is reviewed at each year end.
Development	01161
Development c	
Internally	Internally generated
generated or Acquired	
Useful lives	Finite
Amortisation	Amortised over the period of expected future
method used	sales, not exceeding 3 years, from the related
	project on a straight line basis.
Impairment	Annually and more frequently when an indication
test	of impairment exists. The amortisation method is
	reviewed at each year end.
	· · · · ·

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment; or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(p) Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through the income statement, directly attributable transactions costs. The group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each year end.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through the income statement

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category 'financial assets at fair value through the income statement'. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is recognised in the income statement.

(iv) Available-for-sale investments

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For investments with no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of the year that are unpaid and arise when the group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in trade and other payables in respect of employees' services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(r) Share-based payment transactions

Equity settled transactions

The group provides benefits to employees (including key management personnel) in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). Refer to note 27 for details.

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value has been determined by an external valuer using a Black Scholes or binomial model, further details of which are given in note 27.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of Breville Group Limited (market conditions), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period), ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting date).

At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative charge to the income statement is the product of (i) the grant date fair value of the award; (ii) the current best estimate of the number of awards that will vest, taking into account such factors as the likelihood of employee turnover during the vesting period and the likelihood of non-market performance conditions being met; and (iii) the expired portion of the vesting period.

The charge to the income statement for the period is the cumulative amount as calculated above less the amounts already charged in previous periods. There is a corresponding entry to equity.

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest than were originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to a market condition is considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition is fulfilled, provided that all other conditions are satisfied.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the sharebased payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification. If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (see note 4).

(s) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured as the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is considered to exist when the group has a contract under which the unavoidable cost of meeting the contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits estimated to be received. Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised as a provision to the extent that the present obligation exceeds the economic benefit estimated to be received.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(s) Provisions continued

Warranties and faulty goods

Provisions for warranty and faulty goods are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the group's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the group's liability.

Employee leave benefits - long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised as a provision and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using appropriate market yields at the reporting date to estimate the future cash outflows.

Provision for restructure

The provision for restructure represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of business restructuring.

Provision for make-good

The provision for make-good represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of restoration of leased premises under contracts that have clauses potentially requiring these premises to be restored to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The estimate may vary as a result of negotiations between the parties at the end of the lease term.

(t) Borrowings

All borrowings, including cash advance facilities, are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, borrowings, including cash advance facilities, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(u) Contributed equity

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(ii) Ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust

Ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase of the group's equity instruments by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust.

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards are considered passed to the buyer at the earlier of delivery of the goods or the transfer of legal title to the buyer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

(ii) Commission income

Where an agency relationship exists, the amount included in revenue represents the commission received or receivable.

(iii) Finance revenue

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(iv) Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the group's right to receive the payment is established.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

(x) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

(i) Group as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term. Any lease incentives are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

(ii) Group as a lessor

In some instances the group sub leases surplus operating lease space. Rentals received under sub leases are recognised as a reduction in operating lease expense. Future rentals to be received under non-cancellable sub leases are disclosed in note 24.

(y) Income tax and other taxes

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets/liabilities and their carrying amounts at balance sheet date for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

- when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
- when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss; or
- when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes in relation to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(y) Income tax and other taxes continued

(iii) Tax consolidation legislation

Breville Group Limited and its wholly-owned Australian resident controlled entities (excluding the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust) have implemented the tax consolidated legislation as of 1 July 2003.

The head entity, Breville Group Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand alone tax payer in its own right.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Breville Group Limited also recognises:

- (a) the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group; and
- (b) assets or liabilities arising for Breville Group Limited under the tax funding agreement as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the group.

(iv) Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) or value added tax (VAT) except:

- where the GST/VAT incurred on the purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST/VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
- receivables and payables, which are stated with the applicable amount of GST/VAT included.

The net amount of GST/VAT recoverable/payable is included in receivables/payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis and the GST/VAT component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities are classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of recoverable/payable GST/VAT.

(z) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit or loss attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

cost of servicing equity (other than dividends);

- the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses; and
- other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential ordinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

(aa) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year disclosures.

(ab) New accounting standards and interpretations

(i) Changes to accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new standards and interpretations noted below:

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

AASB 119 Employee Benefits

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

Other new standards that are applicable for the first time at 30 June 2014, did not affect Breville Group's accounting policies or any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(ii) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Relevant accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet effective are outlined below:

Title	Summary	Application Date	Impact on Group
AASB 9 Financial Instruments	Hedge accounting	01/04/14	Immaterial impact

The Group does not expect to adopt the new standard before its operative date. It would first be applied in the financial statements for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2015.



Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 2. Revenue and expenses			
(a) Revenue			
Sale of goods		539,922	469,476
Commission income Total revenue		1,693 541,615	<u>17,071</u> 486,547
Total revenue		341,013	+00,0+7
(b) Cost of sales			
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense (includes write-down			
of inventory to net realisable value (note 8)) Costs of delivering goods to customers		321,616 20,646	272,121 19,809
Warranty provision		23,159	16,475
Total cost of sales		365,421	308,405
(c) Other income		4	
Other income Total other income		1,386 1,386	<u>967</u> 967
		1,500	907
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense			
Depreciation – plant and equipment	11	2,119	2,127
Amortisation – computer software	12(b)	110	235
Amortisation – development costs Total depreciation and amortisation expense	2(h)	5,270 7,499	4,890 7,252
		1,100	1,202
(e) Lease payments and other expenses included in income statement			
Included in premises, lease & utilities expenses:			
 Minimum lease payments – operating lease (excludes onerous leases) 		8,587	8,235
Included in other income/expenses:			
 Net profit on disposal of plant and equipment 		(22)	(7)
 Impairment of intangible assets – development cost Doubtful dobte abarge 		606 37	-
Doubtful debts chargeBad debts written off		158	124
 Net foreign exchange loss 		593	113
Other product related costs		2,755	2,339
(f) Employee benefits expenses			
Wages & salaries, leave and other employee related benefits		44,904	47,518
Defined contribution plan expense		2,184	2,000
Share-based payments expense Total employee benefits expenses		935 48,023	1,332 50,850

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 2. Revenue and expenses continued			
(g) Finance costs/(income)			
Finance costs paid or payable on borrowings and bank overdrafts:			
- interest - other borrowing costs		503 1,436	571 1,085
Finance costs		1,939	1,656
Finance revenue		(863)	(1,328)
Total net finance costs		1,076	328
(h) Research and development costs			
Amortisation of previously capitalised development costs included in			
amortisation expense Research and development costs charged directly to the income	2(d)	5,270	4,890
statement		8,260	7,554
Total research and development costs		13,530	12,444
Note 3. Income tax			
The major components of income tax expense are:			
ncome statement			
Current income tax			
Current income tax		19,145	22,757
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years		(497)	(20
Deferred income tax			
Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences		1,959	(1,185
Total income tax expense reported in the income statement		20,607	21,552
Statement of changes in equity			
Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity			
Foreign currency translation differences		(74)	(592)
Employee equity benefits reserve		(463)	(683
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of cash flow hedges ncome tax benefit reported in equity		(1,257) (1,794)	404 (871
neone tax benefit reported in equity		(1,734)	(071
A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit before income tax multiplied by the parent entity's applicable ncome tax rate is as follows:			
Profit before income tax		69,372	71,284
At the parent entity's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2013: 30%)		20,812	21,385
 adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 		(497)	(20
 effect of different rates of tax on overseas income 		(670)	(606
 expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes other 		782 180	636 157
ncome tax expense reported in the income statement		20,607	21,552

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

	Statement o posit		Income sta	atement
	30 June 2014	30 June 2013	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Note 3. Income tax continued				
Deferred income tax				
Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:				
Deferred tax liabilities				
Brand names	1,875	1,875	-	
Development costs Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes	4,106 8	3,852	(254) (8)	105
Foreign currency translation reserve	229	155	(0)	
Gross deferred income tax liabilities	6,218	5,882		
Deferred tax assets				
Losses available for offset against future taxable income	166	180	(14)	180
Provisions and accruals	5,347	7,779	(2,432)	93
Employee benefits	2,290	3,517	(1,227)	686
Revaluation of inventories	885	678	207	(70
Cash flow hedge reserve	610	(647)	-	118
Employee equity benefits reserve	1,278	1,428	118	522
Other	2,806	1,155	1,651	(449
Gross deferred income tax assets	13,382	14,090		
Net deferred income tax assets	7,164	8,208	(4.050)	4 4 6 6
Deferred tax (expense)/income		_	(1,959)	1,185

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Current income tax		
Current tax asset	1,110	804
Current tax liabilities	5,037	9,102

At 30 June 2014, there is no recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2013: \$nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the group's subsidiaries, as the group has no current intention of distributing existing retained earnings in jurisdictions where liability for additional taxation exists should such amounts be remitted.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 3. Income tax continued

Tax consolidation

Breville Group Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries (excluding the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust) have formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2003.

The head entity, Breville Group Limited, and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group are required to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand alone tax payer in its own right.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Breville Group Limited also recognises:

- the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group; and
- (b) assets or liabilities arising for Breville Group Limited under the tax funding agreement as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the group.

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. The tax funding agreement supports the calculation of current tax liabilities (and assets) and deferred tax assets/liabilities on a stand-alone basis. Calculation is performed in accordance with AASB 112 Income Tax. The allocation of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an increase/decrease in the subsidiaries' intercompany accounts with the tax consolidated group head company, Breville Group Limited.

No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of the tax sharing agreement should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations on the basis that the possibility of default is remote.

Note 4. Earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:		
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Breville Group Limited	48,765	49,732
	Thousands	Thousands
Weighted average number of shares:		
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share	130,095	130,095
Effect of dilution: share options 	-	-
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution	130,095	130,095
Weighted average number of exercised, forfeited or expired potential ordinary shares included in diluted earnings per share	-	-

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares that would significantly change the number of ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares outstanding between the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

	30 June 2014	
Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 5. Dividends		
(a) Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid during the year:		
Final franked dividend for the year ending 30 June 2013 of 12.0 cents per share (2013: final fully franked dividend for 2012 of 11.5 cents per share)		
 Paid in cash (i) Final dividend 	15,611 15,611	14,961 14,961
	15,011	14,901
Fully franked interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2014 of 14.0 cents per share (2013: interim dividend for 2012 of 14.0 cents per share (9.5 cents franked))		
 Paid in cash (i) 	18,213	18,213
Interim dividend	18,213	18,213
Total fully franked dividends declared and paid during the year of 26.0 cents per share (2013: partially franked 25.5 cents per share (21.0 cents franked))		
(i) Total dividends paid in cash	33,824	33,174
Total dividends	33,824	33,174
(b) Dividends on ordinary shares proposed and not recognised as a liability:		
Final fully franked dividend for 2014 of 13.0 cents per share		
(2013: final fully franked dividend of 12.0 cents per share)	16,912	15,611
c) Franking credit balance		
 The amount of franking credits in the parent available for the subsequent year are: franking account balance as at the end of the year at 30% (2013: 30%) franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the 	3,989	2,022
year	2,567	6,914
The encluse of free binst and its in the memory equilable for future respectively a signification	6,556	8,936
 The amount of franking credits in the parent available for future reporting periods: impact on the franking account of dividends proposed or declared before the financial report was authorised for issue but not recognised as distribution to equity holders during the 		
period Tetal franking gradit balance	(7,248)	(6,691)
Total franking credit balance	(692)	2,245

The tax rate at which dividends are franked is 30% (2013: 30%).

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents			
Cash at bank and on hand	(a)	70,885	68,130
	(4)		
Notes:			
 (a) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. (b) At 30 June 2014, the Group had available \$30,438,000 (2013: \$30,128,000) of u committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had be (c) The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is \$70,885,000 (2013: \$68,130,000). 	en met.		
(a) Reconciliation of cash flow statement:			
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash			
equivalents comprise the following at 30 June: Cash and cash equivalents		70,885	68,130
Bank overdraft	16	-	(1,580
Total cash and cash equivalents, net		70,885	66,550
(b) Reconciliation of net profit after tax for the year to net cash flows from operating activities			
Net profit for the year		48,765	49,732
Adjustments for:		7 400	7.05/
Depreciation and amortisation Share-based payments		7,499 935	7,252 1,332
Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment		(22)	(7
Net fair value change on derivatives		-	(8
Foreign exchange losses Changes in assets and liabilities:		593	11;
Decrease/(increase) in:			
Trade and other receivables		11,586	(13,890
Inventories		(10,978)	(19,310
Prepayments Other current assets		239 (206)	65 (385
Non-current assets		1,827	(997
Increase/(decrease) in:			
Current liabilities		(9,322)	19,58
Non-current liabilities Net cash flows from operating activities		<u>236</u> 51.152	<u>(7,115</u> 36,956
nor oash noms nom operating activities		51,152	50,90

(c) Disclosure of financing facilities

Refer to note 16.



Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 7. Trade and other receivables			
Trade receivables Allowance for uncollectible receivables Trade receivables, net	(a)	78,085 (192) 77,893	88,865 (291) 88,574
Other receivables Total current trade and other receivables	(b)	549 78,442	2,196 90,770

Notes:

(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. An allowance for uncollectible receivables is made when there is objective evidence on a case by case basis that a trade receivable is impaired. A charge of \$37,000 (2013: \$124,000) has been recognised by the group as an expense in 'other expenses' for the current year for specific debtors for which such evidence exists. The amount of the allowance/impairment loss has been measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the trade receivables and the estimated future cash flows expected to be received from the relevant debtors.

Movements in the allowances for uncollectible receivables are as follows:

	30 June	30 June
	2014	2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Balance at beginning of year	291	470
Charge for the year	37	124
Net foreign exchange	(5)	20
Amounts utilised	(131)	(323)
Balance at end of year	192	291

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 7. Trade and other receivables continued

At 30 June 2014 an ageing analysis of those trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as follows:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
1 – 30 days overdue	16,219	8,682
31 – 60 days overdue	122	149
61+ days overdue	10	8
Total past due but not impaired	16,351	8,839

Trade receivables past due but not impaired amount to \$16,351,000 (2013: \$8,839,000). Of this balance, \$13,803,000 (2013: \$6,851,000) is covered by insurance to be used in the event of default of payment. In all instances each operating unit has been in contact with the relevant debtor and is satisfied that payment will be received in full.

(b) Non-trade other receivables are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms between 30 and 60 days.

Balances within other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that these balances will be received when due.

The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the trade and other receivables is assumed to approximate their fair value, being the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between willing parties.

Details regarding the effective interest rate and credit risk of current receivables are disclosed in note 23.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 8. Inventories			
Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) Stock in transit (at cost) Total inventories	(a)	77,652 16,622 94,274	68,036 15,715 83,751

Notes:

(a) Total net finished goods provision movements recognised in the income statement totalled a \$1,019,000 expense (2013: \$595,000 expense) for the group. This net expense (2013: expense) is included in the cost of inventories line in the cost of sales.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 9. Other financial assets		
Derivative assets		
Forward exchange contracts – cash flow hedges Total other financial assets	7	2,110 2,110
Notes:		
Derivative assets represent the fair value receivable arising from forward exchange contracts disclosed in note 18.		
Note 10. Other assets		
Prepayments	2,629	2,833
Total other assets	2,629	2,833
Note 11. Plant and equipment		
At the beginning of the year		
At cost (gross carrying amount)	25,896	30,948
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(22,157)	(27,073)
Net carrying amount (i)	3,739	3,875
At the end of the year		
At cost (gross carrying amount)	28,763	25,896
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(21,903)	(22,157)
Net carrying amount (i)	6,860	3,739
(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount		
Carrying amount at the beginning of year	3,739	3,875
Additions	5,174	1,901
Disposals Description	(11)	(56)
Depreciation 2(d) Net exchange difference	(2,119) 77	(2,127) 146
Carrying amount at the end of year	6,860	3,739

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
Note	\$'000	\$'000
	+	
Note 12. Intangible assets - other		
Development costs (a)	13,543	12,840
Computer software (b)	5,215	3,020
Brand names (c)	31,575	31,803
Total intangible assets - other	50,333	47,663

Notes:

Development costs are internally generated and have been capitalised at cost. This intangible asset has been assessed as having a finite life and is amortised using the straight line method over a maximum period of 3 years. If an impairment indication arises, the recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.

Computer software is internally developed and purchased computer software that has been capitalised into other intangible assets at cost.

Brand names include intangible assets acquired through previous business combinations. These intangible assets have been determined to have indefinite useful lives as the economic benefits which are obtained from them are expected to be ongoing. The cost model is utilised for their measurement. These assets were tested for impairment as at 30 June 2014 (see note 14).

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
Note	\$'000	\$'000
(a) Development costs		
At the beginning of the year		
At cost (gross carrying amount) Accumulated amortisation and impairment Net carrying amount (i)	36,383 (23,543) 12,840	31,843 (18,653) 13,190
At the end of the year		,
At cost (gross carrying amount) Accumulated amortisation and impairment Net carrying amount (i)	40,034 (26,491) 13,543	36,383 (23,543) 12,840
(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amountCarrying amount at the beginning of yearAdditions – internal developmentImpairment2(e)Amortisation2(d)	12,840 6,579 (606) (5,270)	13,190 4,540 - (4,890)
Carrying amount at the end of year (b) Computer software	13,543	12,840
At the beginning of the yearAt cost (gross carrying amount)Accumulated amortisation and impairmentNet carrying amount(i)	5,631 (2,611) 3,020	3,695 (3,390) 305
At the end of the year		
At cost (gross carrying amount) Accumulated amortisation and impairment Net carrying amount (i)	6,850 (1,635) 5,215	5,631 (2,611) 3,020

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 12. Intangible assets - other continued			
(b) Computer software continued			
(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount			
Carrying amount at the beginning of year		3,020	305
Additions	- ())	2,303	2,943
Amortisation	2(d)	(110) 2	(235)
Net exchange difference Carrying amount at the end of year		5,215	3,020
(c) Brand names			
At the beginning/end of the year			
Net carrying amount		31,575	31,803
(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount			
Carrying amount at the beginning of year		31,803	31,803
Disposals		(228)	-
Carrying amount at the end of year		31,575	31,803
Note 13. Intangible assets - goodwill			
At the beginning and at the end of the year			
Net carrying amount		24,558	24,558

Note 14. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

Goodwill and brand names acquired through business combinations have been allocated to cash generating units for impairment testing as follows:

- Breville Group
- Breville Australia
- North America Distribution
- New Zealand Distribution
- Rest of World Distributors

In all cases the recoverable amount of the individual cash generating unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board.

The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 12.8% (2013: 13.4%). Cash flows beyond the approved 30 June 2014 budgets are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate (2013: 2.0%), which is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the wholesale consumer products industry generally.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 14. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives continued

Management has performed sensitivity testing by cash generating unit (CGU), based on assessing the effect of changes in revenue growth rates as well as discount rates. Management consider any reasonable likely combination of changes in these key assumptions would not result in the carrying value of the goodwill exceeding the recoverable amount.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Carrying amounts of goodwill and brand names are allocated as follows:			
Breville Group			
- brand names with indefinite useful lives		13,800	13,800
Breville Australia			
- goodwill - brand names with indefinite useful lives		20,277 17,775	20,277 18,003
		38,052	38,280
North America Distribution			
- goodwill		1,764	1,764
New Zealand Distribution			
- goodwill		276	276
Rest of World Distributors			
- goodwill		2,241	2,241
		56,133	56,361
All cash generating units - goodwill	13	24,558	24,558
- brand names with indefinite useful lives	12(c)	31,575	31,803
Total carrying amount of goodwill and brand names		56,133	56,361

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations for the cash generating units for 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections when determining the value in use of the cash generating units.

Budgeted gross margins – the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on past
performance and expectations for the future.

Bond rates – the yield on a ten-year government bond rate at the beginning of the budgeted year is used.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 15. Trade and other payables			
Current			
Trade payables – unsecured Employee benefits	(a) 28	78,437 3,356	77,909 4,357
Total current trade and other payables		81,793	82,266

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments:

(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the trade and other payables is assumed to approximate their fair value, being the amount at which the liability could be settled in a current transaction between willing parties.

Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk exposure are disclosed in note 23.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 16. Borrowings			
Current			
Bank overdrafts – on demand	6(a)	-	1,580
Other loans:			
- Cash advance facilities		-	11,998
- Term loan		56	52
Total current borrowings		56	13,630
Non-current			
Other loans:			
- Cash advance facilities		23,687	10,943
- Term loan		93	127
Total non-current borrowings		23,780	11,070

Terms and conditions

The group operates under one primary facility with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ) enabling all jurisdictions to borrow under one global facility. The facility agreement has a number of financial covenants all of which have been fully complied with as at the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.

The Australia and New Zealand financing facilities are secured by a first ranking fixed and floating registered charge (or general security for Breville New Zealand Limited), over all the assets and undertakings of Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty Limited, Breville Holdings Pty Limited, Breville R&D Pty Limited and Breville New Zealand Limited and are guaranteed by Breville Group Limited. The Hong Kong facility is secured via a security agreement over the assets and undertakings of HWI International Limited. The day to day Canadian transactional banking facilities (HSBC) are secured by a standby letter of credit from ANZ (NY). Breville Group Limited has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the local bank (HSBC) which provides the day to day US and UK transactional banking facilities. A security agreement in favour of ANZ is in existence over the assets and undertakings of Breville USA, Inc and BRG Appliances Limited.

Borrowings may include Australian dollar, US dollar, Canadian dollar, British pounds and New Zealand dollar denominated amounts.

Fair value

The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the borrowings held with banks (determined under Level 2, as described in note 18) approximates their fair value. Fair values of the Company's interest-bearing loans are determined by using a discounted cash flow method using a discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The non-performance risk as at 30 June 2014 was assessed to be insignificant. Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk are disclosed in notes 18 and 23.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 16. Borrowings continued			
Financing facilities available			
At reporting date, the following financial facilities have been negotiated and were available to the group:			
Facilities used at the reporting date	(a)	26,672	27,967
Facilities unused at the reporting date Total facilities	(b) (c)	36,398 63,070	34,859 62,826
	(0)		02,020
(a) Facilities used at the reporting date:			
- Non-current cash advance facilities		23,687	10,943
 Current cash advance facilities Trade finance facilities 		1	11,998
- Overdraft facilities		-	1,580
- Business transactions facilities		503 1,947	497 2,093
 Indemnity/guarantee facilities Documentary credit facilities 		535	2,093
Facilities used as at reporting date		26,672	27,967
(b) Facilities unused at the reporting date:			
 Non-current cash advance facilities Current cash advance facilities 		15,693	5,200 11,805
- Trade finance facilities		1,987	2,080
- Overdraft facilities		12,758	11,043
- Business transactions facilities - Indemnity/guarantee facilities		502 1,752	497 713
- Documentary credit facilities		3,706	3,521
Facilities unused as at reporting date		36,398	34,859
(c) Total facilities:			
- Non-current cash advance facilities		39,380	16,143
 Current cash advance facilities Trade finance facilities 		- 1,987	23,803 2,080
- Overdraft facilities		12,758	12,623
- Business transactions facilities		1,005	994
 Indemnity/guarantee facilities Documentary credit facilities 		3,699 4,241	2,806 4,377
Total facilities		63,070	62,826

Seasonal facility

Under the primary facility with ANZ, the group also has a seasonal facility available between October 2014 - January 2015 (2013: October 2013 – January 2014) of \$10,000,000 (2013: \$10,000,000) and a seasonal facility available between September 2014 and March 2015 (2013: October 2013 – March 2014) of \$7,951,654 (2013: \$7,113,154). These facilities are under the same terms and conditions as described above.

Borrowings may include Australian dollar, US dollar, Canadian dollar, British pounds and New Zealand dollar denominated amounts.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 17. Provisions			
Current			
Warranty and faulty goods		7,203	4,908
Employee benefits – long service	28	1,449	1,502
Restructure provision		-	1,112
Provision for make good Onerous lease contracts		220 184	396 5,123
Total current provisions	(a)	9,056	13,041
Non-current			
Employee benefits – long service	28	1,461	1,308
Onerous lease contracts	(-)	66	324
Total non-current provisions	(a)	1,527	1,632

	Warranty and faulty goods \$'000	Employee benefits - long service \$'000	Provision for restructure \$'000	Provision for make- good \$'000	Onerous lease contracts \$'000	Total \$'000
(a) Movement in provisions						
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year:						
Current	4,908	1,502	1,112	396	5,123	13,041
Non-current	-	1,308	-	-	324	1,632
Total	4,908	2,810	1,112	396	5,447	14,673
Movement in provisions during the year:						
Additional provisions made in the year	23,159	431	-	-	-	23,590
Amounts utilised/reversed during the year	(20,730)	(328)	(1,112)	(176)	(5,194)	(27,540)
Net exchange differences	(134)	(3)	-	-	(3)	(140)
Net movement	2,295	100	(1,112)	(176)	(5,197)	(4,090)
Carrying amount at the end of the year:						
Current	7,203	1,449	-	220	184	9,056
Non-current	-	1,461	-	-	66	1,527
Total	7,203	2,910	-	220	250	10,583

Warranty and faulty goods

A provision for warranty and faulty goods represents the present value of the best estimate of the future sacrifice of economic benefits expected that will be required for warranty and faulty goods claims on products sold. This estimate is based on the historical trends experienced on the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next year. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranty and faulty goods were based on the level of warranty and faulty goods claims experienced during the last year.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 17. Provisions continued

Employee benefits - long service

The provision for employee benefits represents the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using appropriate market yields at the reporting date to estimate the future cash outflows.

Provision for restructure

The provision for restructure represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of the restructure of the Canadian business unit following the cessation of the Keurig distribution agreement in Canada.

Provision for make-good

The provision for make-good represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of restoration of leased premises under contracts that have clauses potentially requiring these premises to be restored to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The estimate may vary as a result of negotiations between the parties at the end of the lease term.

Onerous lease contracts

The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the present value of the future lease payments that the consolidated entity is presently obligated to make in respect of onerous lease contracts under non-cancellable operating lease agreements, less revenue expected to be earned on the lease including estimated future sub-lease revenue, where applicable. The estimate may vary as a result of changes in the utilisation of the leased premises and sub-lease arrangements where applicable.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 18. Other financial liabilities			
Derivative liabilities			
Forward exchange contracts – cash flow hedges Total other financial liabilities	(i)	1,967 1,967	<u>13</u> 13

Instruments used by the group

Derivative financial instruments are used by the group in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of all derivative assets and liabilities have been determined under Level 2.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 18. Other financial liabilities continued

(i) Forward exchange contracts - cash flow hedges

The majority of the group's inventory purchases from suppliers are denominated in US dollars (US\$). In order to manage exchange rate movements and to manage the inventory costing process, the group has entered into forward exchange contracts to purchase US\$. These contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted purchases and highly probable forecasted payments and they are timed to mature when settlement of purchases or the payments are scheduled to be made.

The cash flows are expected to occur between 0-12 months from 1 July 2014 (2013: 0-12 months) and the cost of sales and where applicable the sale of goods within the income statement will be affected in the next financial year as the inventory is sold or the payments are made. At balance date, the details of outstanding contracts are:

	30 June	30 June 2014 Average exchange		e 2013 Average exchange
	A\$'000	rate	A\$'000	rate
Buy US\$ / Sell Australian \$				
Buy US\$ - maturity 0-12 months (2013: 0-12 months)	34,658	0.8887	30,631	0.9549
Buy US\$ / Sell New Zealand \$				
Buy US\$ - maturity 0-5 months (2013: 0-5 months)	1,731	0.8312	2,494	0.8149
Buy US\$ / Sell Canadian \$				
Buy US\$ - maturity 0-6 months (2013: 0-6 months)	10,587	0.9150	8,514	0.9772
Buy US\$ / Sell British £				
Buy US\$ - maturity 0-6 months (2013: 0-5 months)	2,348	1.6757	3,095	1.5161
Buy CHF / Sell Australian \$				
Buy CHF – maturity 0-7 months (2013: nil)	538	0.8367	-	-
Buy Euro / Sell Australian \$				
Buy Euro – maturity 0-8 months (2013: nil)	1,531	0.6859	-	-

The cash flow hedges of the forecast purchases and forecast payments are considered to be highly effective and any gain or loss on the contracts is taken directly to equity. Where the contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted inventory purchases, when the inventory is received the amount recognised in equity is adjusted to the inventory account in the balance sheet. Where the contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted payments, when the payments are made the amount recognised in equity is adjusted to the inventory (2013: \$257,000 debited) and \$2,947,000 was debited (2013: \$1,370,000 credited) to equity in respect of the group.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 19. Issued capital			
Ordinary shares – authorised, issued and fully paid Ordinary shares – held by the Breville Group Performance Share	(a)	140,050	140,050
Plan Trust	(b)	-	(1,682)
Total contributed equity		140,050	138,368

Ordinary shares are held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, are yet to be allocated to LTI participants. They will be allocated to participants once performance rights vest and they are exercised. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the company, to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, and the group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, and the group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, and amounts paid up on shares held. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, and amounts paid up on shares held. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the company. Details are provided in note 25(b) and note 27.

	30 June 2014		30 June 2013	
Note	Number of shares	\$'000	Number of shares	\$'000
(a) Movements in ordinary issued shares:				
Beginning and end of the year	130,095,322	140,050	130,095,322	140,050

		30 June 2014		2014 30 June 2013	
	Note	Number of shares	\$'000	Number of shares	\$'000
(b) Movements in ordinary shares held by the Brevi Group Performance Share Plan Trust:	lle				
Beginning of the year		(249,000)	(1,682)	(303,000)	(1,290)
Movements during the year					
Transferred to participants of the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan Ordinary shares acquired by the Breville Group	(i)	370,500	2,723	337,500	1,491
Performance Share Plan Trust during the year - cash	(ii)	(121,500)	(1,041)	(283,500)	(1,883)
End of the year		-	-	(249,000)	(1,682)

- (i) During the year the Trustee of the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust transferred 370,500 ordinary company shares (2013: 337,500) to participants in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan.
- (ii) During the year the Trustee of the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust acquired 121,500 ordinary shares (2013: 283,500) in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan. The average value placed on these acquisitions was \$8.57 per share (2013: \$6.64). Details are provided in note 25(b) and note 27.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 19. Issued capital continued

(c) Performance rights over ordinary shares:

The company has a share-based payment performance rights scheme under which rights to subscribe for the company's shares have been granted to certain executives and other employees (refer note 27). At the end of the year there were 920,000 (2013: 838,500) potential unissued ordinary shares in respect of performance rights that were outstanding.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 20. Reserves			
Foreign currency translation reserve Employee equity benefits reserve Cash flow hedge reserve Total reserves	(a) (b) (c)	(9,638) (948) (1,352) (11,938)	(9,022) 377 1,480 (7,165)
(a) Movement in foreign currency translation reserve			
Balance at beginning of year Currency translation differences Tax effect of foreign currency translation reserve Balance at end of year		(9,022) (690) 74 (9,638)	(14,893) 5,279 592 (9,022)
(b) Movement in employee equity benefits reserve			
Balance at beginning of year Share-based payments expense Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan Tax effect of employee equity benefits reserve Balance at end of year		377 935 (2,723) 463 (948)	(147) 1,332 (1,491) <u>683</u> 377
(c) Movement in cash flow hedge reserve			
Balance at beginning of year Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges Tax effect of net losses/(gains) on cash flow hedges Balance at end of year		1,480 (4,089) <u>1,257</u> (1,352)	257 1,627 (404) 1,480

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 20. Reserves continued

Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Employee equity benefits reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 27 for further details of these plans.

Cash flow hedge reserve

This reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined to be an effective hedge.

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 21. Retained earnings			
Balance at beginning of the year		69,993	53,435
Net profit for the year attributable to members of Breville Group Limited		48,765	49,732
		,	,
Dividends	5(a)	(33,824)	(33,174)
Balance at end of the year		84,934	69,993

Note 22. Operating segments

The group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed by the chief operating decision makers (group chief executive officer and board of directors) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

The ANZ Distribution and North America Distribution operating segments distribute primarily small electrical appliances to retail customers in their geographical locations. The Rest of World operating segment distributes primarily small electrical appliances to distributors in international locations and also includes the UK business.

Other is not an operating segment and comprises the short term incentive plan and group's shared service facility, including the group's design and development, global marketing and supply chain functions. The prior year comparative includes the revenues and costs associated with the establishment of the new UK business which commenced trading in May 2013.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in note 1.

Transfer prices between operating segments are set at arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. The segment revenue and segment result include certain transfers between operating segments. Those transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

Segment profit before income tax excludes certain transfer prices and includes an allocation of head office costs.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 22. Operating segments continued

	ANZ Distribution \$'000	North America Distribution \$'000	Rest of World \$'000	Other \$'000	Total \$'000
Year ended 30 June 2014					
Revenue					
Sale of goods	261,621	198,508	79,793	-	539,922
Commission income	-	1,693	-	-	1,693
Inter-segment revenue	-	-	8,187	25,857	34,044
Total segment revenue	261,621	200,201	87,980	25,857	575,659
Inter-segment elimination				_	(34,044)
Total consolidated revenues				_	541,615
Segment results					
EBITDA	25,983	30,432	20,242	1,290	77,947
Depreciation & amortisation	(1,115)	(337)	(42)	(6,005)	(7,499)
EBIT	24,868	30,095	20,200	(4,715)	70,448
Finance revenue	817	27	5	14	863
Finance costs	(367)	(912)	(507)	(153)	(1,939)
Profit before income tax	25,318	29,210	19,698	(4,854)	69,372
Other segment information					
Capital expenditure	3,821	242	112	999	5,174

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 22. Operating segments continued

	ANZ Distribution \$'000	North America Distribution \$'000	Rest of World \$'000	Other \$'000	Total \$'000
Year ended 30 June 2013					
Revenue					
Sale of goods	240,953	175,299	51,106	2,118	469,476
Commission income	-	17,071	-	-	17,071
Inter-segment revenue	-	-	7,179	22,696	29,875
Total segment revenue	240,953	192,370	58,285	24,814	516,422
Inter-segment elimination				_	(29,875)
Total consolidated revenues				-	486,547
Segment results					
EBITDA	28,296	38,479	15,688	(3,599)	78,864
Depreciation & amortisation	(951)	(600)	(8)	(5,693)	(7,252)
EBIT	27,345	37,879	15,680	(9,292)	71,612
Finance revenue	1,257	40	9	22	1,328
Finance costs	(318)	(898)	(125)	(315)	(1,656)
Profit before income tax	28,284	37,021	15,564	(9,585)	71,284
Other segment information					
Capital expenditure	848	262	3	788	1,901

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprises cash advances, bank overdrafts, cash at bank and short-term deposits.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the group's operations. The group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The group also enters into derivative transactions, including forward exchange contracts and at times, foreign exchange option contracts and interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the group's business operations and its sources of finance. It is the group's policy that no speculative trading in derivatives shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from the group's financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is estimated using market observable inputs. The fair values of these financial instruments are disclosed in notes 9 and 18.

Interest rate risk

The group is exposed to interest rate risk on its borrowings, cash balances and derivative financial instruments. The group's policy is to manage its interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. Historically, fixed rate debt was achieved through the use of interest rate swaps in which the group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. Cash advance facilities have short term fixed interest rates with maturities ranging between 1 and 3 months, therefore within the financial year they are exposed to interest rate risk.

At 30 June 2014, the group has the following exposure to interest rate risk:

	30 June	30 June
	2014	2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Cash at bank	70,885	68,130
Bank overdraft – on demand	-	(1,580)
Cash advance facilities	(23,687)	(22,941)
Term loan	(149)	(179)
Net exposure	47,049	43,430

At 30 June 2014, 0% of the group's borrowings (2013: 0%) are at a fixed rate of interest. The remaining 100% (2013: 100%) is exposed to floating rates. On a principal net receivable of \$47,049,000 (2013: \$43,430,000), at an average payable rate including margin of 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) and average receivable rate of 1.4% (2013: 2.3%), an increment of 0.5% in the market rates would result in a decrease in finance costs of \$437,000 (2013: \$421,000), conversely a decrement of 0.5% in the market rates would result in an increase in finance costs of \$323,000 (2013: \$333,000).

The group's net exposure to interest rate risk calculated as at 30 June 2014 is not representative of its exposure during the financial year due to seasonality in the volume of sales such that financial performance is historically weighted in favour of the half to 31 December. This seasonality results in a higher level of receivable and inventory balances and a consequent increase in working capital requirements. All of the group's borrowings during the year (2013 average borrowings: 100%) are at a floating rate of interest. On an average principal net receivable during the year of \$31,936,000 (2013: \$35,688,000), at an average payable rate including margin of 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) and average receivable rate of 1.4% (2013: 2.3%), an increment of 0.5% in the market rates would result in a decrease in finance costs of \$160,000 (2013: \$178,000), conversely a decrement of 0.5% in the market rates would result in a decrease in finance costs of \$126,000 (2013: \$152,000).

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Foreign currency risk

The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currently and is exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Such exposure arises primarily from purchases of inventory by a business unit in currencies other than the unit's functional currency (purchases are predominately US dollar denominated). Other foreign exchange risk only arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.

To hedge exposure arising from the purchase of inventories or payments in currencies other than the business unit's functional currency, a combination of forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts may be utilised. At inception these hedge contracts are designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the exposure to the variability in cash flows arising as a result of movements in exchange rates below contracted exchange rates for options and for movements above or below a contracted exchange rate for forward exchange contracts.

Also, as a result of the group's investment in its overseas operations, the group's balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the exchange rates of the jurisdictions it operates within.

At 30 June 2014, the group has the following financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign currency risk:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Cash at bank	1,442	(37)
Trade and other receivables	2,287	3,286
Trade and other payables	(17)	(3,264)
Other financial assets – derivative assets	7	2,110
Other financial liabilities – derivative liabilities	(1,967)	(13)
Net exposure	1,752	2,082

At 30 June 2014, the group had hedged 57% (2013: 50%) of its foreign currency purchases extending to June 2015 (2013: June 2014). The remaining 43% (2013: 50%) is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Of the total net exposure above, an increment of 10% in the foreign exchange rates would result in a decrease in other expenses of \$335,000 (2013: \$1,500). A decrement of 10% in the foreign exchange rates would result in an increase in other expenses of \$415,000 (2013: \$1,700).

In respect of net derivative assets and liabilities above, being the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges, a decrease of 10% in the US dollar exchange rate against local currencies, all other variables held constant, would result in an increase in equity of \$5,215,000 (2013: \$5,164,000). Conversely, an increase of 10% in the US dollar exchange rate against local currencies, all other variables held constant, would result in a decrease in equity of \$4,267,000 (2013: \$4,225,000).

Capital management

The board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The board monitors the group's gearing ratio and compliance with debt covenants on a regular basis. The group's gearing ratio at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 is nil due to the group being in a net cash position. The gearing ratio is defined as group net borrowings divided by capital employed (net borrowings plus shareholders' equity).

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted. The credit risk on financial assets, excluding investments, of the group that has been recognised on the balance sheet is the carrying value amount, net of any uncollectible receivables.

The group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In certain instances, where deemed appropriate, receivable insurance is acquired to offset the group's exposure to credit risk.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk across the group.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and certain derivative instruments, the group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. These counter parties are large multi-national banks.

Since the group trades only with recognised third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk

The group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash advances and bank overdrafts. The group's bank facilities carry between a one and three year term in Australia, USA, Canada and the UK. As at 30 June 2014, 99.6% of the group's borrowings will mature in greater than one year (2013: 45%) and 0.4% (2013: 55%) in less than one year.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group's liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flows. See note 16 for details of available facilities.

At 30 June 2014, the remaining contractual maturities of the group's financial liabilities are:

	30 June	30 June
	2014	2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Less than 1 year	83,846	95,931
Between 1 and 5 years	23,780	11,686
	107,626	107,617

The table below analyses the group's remaining contractual maturities by the type of financial liability. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

	30 June 2014			30 June 2013		
	Less	Between		Less	Between	
	than 1	1 and 5		than 1	1 and 5	
	year	years	Total	year	years	Total
	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Trade and other payables	81,793	-	81,793	82,266	616	82,882
Borrowings	86	23,780	23,866	13,652	11,070	24,722
Other financial liabilities	1,967	-	1,967	13	-	13
	83,846	23,780	107,626	95,931	11,686	107,617

Contractual maturities disclosed in the tables above include contracted interest payments. Total borrowings disclosed in note 16 exclude such contracted interest payments.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 24. Commitments and contingencies

Operating lease commitments - group as lessee

Operating leases are entered into mainly as a means of acquiring access to commercial property and storage facilities and the use of minor items of plant and equipment. Rental payments are generally fixed; however certain property leases contain a rental inflation escalation clause, an agreed rental percentage increase clause, a market rental review clause or a mix of these clauses over the term of the operating lease.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Within one year After one year but not later than five years More than five years	6,431 12,567 6,853	11,824 22,206 -
Total future minimum rentals payable	25,851	34,030

Contingent rentals are determined with reference to known existing rental payments and known rental increases during the existing term of each operating lease.

No purchase options exist in relation to operating leases and no operating lease contains restrictions on financing or other leasing activities. Certain property leases contain renewal option clauses.

Operating lease commitments receivable - group as lessor

The group has entered into commercial property leases for certain surplus office and warehouse space. Rental charges under operating leases with sub lease tenants are generally fixed; however certain property leases contain a rental inflation escalation clause, an agreed rental percentage increase clause, a market rental review clause or a mix of these clauses over the term of the operating lease.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Within one year After one year but not later than five years	300 -	1,787 4,346
Total future minimum rentals receivable	300	6,133

Contingencies

Indemnity agreements have been entered into with certain officers of the group in respect of expenses and liabilities they incur in their official capacities. No monetary limit applies to these agreements and no known obligations have emerged as a result of these agreements.

Cross guarantees given by Breville Group Limited, Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Holdings Pty Limited and Breville Pty Limited are described in note 25(a).

Breville Group Limited has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the local bank (HSBC) which provides the day to day US and UK transactional banking facilities.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 25. Related party disclosure

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Breville Group Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the following table.

			Equity	interest
Legal entity	Country of incorporation		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
		Note	%	%
Thebe International Pty Limited Investments not held directly by Breville Group Limited:	Australia	(a)	100	100
Breville Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	(a)	100	100
Breville Pty Limited	Australia	(a)	100	100
Breville R&D Pty Limited	Australia		100	100
Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust	Australia	(b)	-	-
Breville New Zealand Limited	New Zealand		100	100
HWI International Limited	Hong Kong		100	100
Gannet Holdings Limited	Hong Kong	(c)	-	100
HWI Export Limited	Hong Kong	(c)	-	100
Breville Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited	China		100	100
Breville Holdings USA, Inc.	USA		100	100
Breville USA, Inc.	USA		100	100
Holding HWI Canada, Inc	Canada		100	100
HWI Canada, Inc	Canada		100	100
Breville Canada, L.P. (formerly Anglo Canadian Housewares, L.P.)	Canada		100	100
BRG Appliances Limited	UK		100	100

Breville Group Limited, a company incorporated in Australia is the ultimate parent of the group.

(a) Entities subject to class order relief

Pursuant to class order 98/1418, relief has been granted to Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of their financial reports.

As a condition of the class order, Breville Group Limited and Thebe International Pty Limited entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee on 4 November 1999. This deed was subsequently assumed by Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited under an assumption deed dated 19 December 2001. The effect of the deed is that Breville Group Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of either controlled entity or if they do not meet their obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee. The controlled entities have also given a similar guarantee in the event that Breville Group Limited is wound up or if it does not meet its obligation under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee.

The entities comprising the class order "closed group" are Breville Group Limited, Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited. The consolidated statement of financial position and income statement of the entities that are members of the "closed group" are detailed in notes 25(i) and 25(ii).

(b) Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust

A trust fund has been established with the appointment of an independent Trustee. The trust is funded by funds irretrievably contributed to it by the company and the Trustee uses these funds to either subscribe for a new issue of shares in the company or purchase shares on the ASX in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan.

The trust does not form part of the Breville Group Limited Australian tax consolidation group.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the Trustee acquired 121,500 company shares (2013: 283,500). The average value placed on these acquisitions was \$8.57 per share (2013: \$6.64).

(c) HWI Export Limited and Gannet Holdings Limited

HWI Export Limited and Gannet Holdings Limited were dissolved by deregistration on 27 June 2014.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 25. Related party disclosure continued			
(i) Consolidated statement of financial position for class order closed group			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents		36,181	33,884
Trade and other receivables		51,439	48,366
Inventories		48,255	44,776
Other financial assets Other assets		7 614	1,712 534
Total current assets		136,496	129,272
		100,400	120,212
Non-current assets			
Other financial assets		22,084	27,225
Plant and equipment		11,008	5,571
Intangible assets		55,637	55,203
Deferred tax assets		2,030	2,734
Total non-current assets		90,759	90,733
Total assets		227,255	220,005
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables		45,886	43,042
Current tax liabilities		2,567	6,914
Provisions		6,330	11,325
Other financial liabilities		1,612	-
Total current liabilities		56,395	61,281
Non-current liabilities			
Accounts payable		-	588
Provisions		1,350	1,291
Total non-current liabilities		1,350	1,879
Total liabilities		57,745	63,160
Net assets		169,510	156,845
Equits.			
Equity		4 40 050	400.000
Issued capital		140,050	138,369
Reserves Retained earnings	25(ii)	(6,548) 36,008	(2,870) 21,346
	20(II)	30,000	21,040

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Note 25. Related party disclosure continued (ii) Consolidated income statement for class order closed group			
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities		65,791 (17,305)	60,130 (16,293)
Net profit Accumulated profits at the beginning of the year Dividends paid or reinvested		48,486 21,346 (33,824)	43,837 10,683 (33,174)
Accumulated profits at the end of the year	25(i)	36,008	21,346

(a) Ultimate controlling entity

The ultimate controlling entity of the group in Australia is Breville Group Limited.

(b) Wholly owned group transactions

During the financial period, loans were advanced and repayments received on inter-group accounts with subsidiaries in the wholly owned group. These transactions were undertaken on commercial terms and conditions.

(c) Key management personnel

Details relating to key management personnel, including remuneration paid, are included in the Remuneration Report and note 29.

Note 26. Parent entity information

As at and throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2014 the parent company of the group was Breville Group Limited.

	30 June	30 June
	2014	2013
	\$'000	\$'000
Results of the parent entity		
Profit of the parent entity	35,485	34,510
Total comprehensive income of the parent entity	35,485	34,510
Financial position of the parent entity		
Current assets	71,083	74,792
Total assets	145,540	147,869
Current liabilities	(2,567)	(6,914)
Total liabilities	(2,567)	(6,914)
Net assets	142,973	140,955
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent		
Issued capital	140,050	138,368
Employee equity benefits reserve	(948)	377
Retained earnings	3,871	2,210
Total shareholders' equity	142,973	140,955

Contingencies

The parent company has guaranteed under the terms of an ASIC class order any deficiency of funds if Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited are wound up. No such deficiency currently exists.

The parent company has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the local bank in the US and the UK (HSBC) which provides the day to day US and UK transactional banking facilities.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27. Share-based payment plans

Performance rights plan

Under the performance rights plan participants are issued with performance rights over the ordinary shares of Breville Group Limited issued in accordance with the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan (PRP).

An offer under the PRP grants a participant the right to a certain number of fully paid ordinary shares in the company. Upon satisfaction of the performance hurdle, the right will vest and be convertible into shares. The company uses time-based and financial-based hurdles. Earnings per share (EPS) is the financial-based performance hurdle for the LTI plan. EPS represents the earnings per share from operations adjusted for non-trading items. The use of EPS ensures an alignment between shareholder return and reward for participants.

In addition to the grant of performance rights awards which are subject to an EPS performance hurdle, performance rights awards also may be granted in accordance with the PRP as a retention award where the performance condition is continued employment with the company to vesting date.

If the performance hurdle is not met or if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, any unvested performance rights will lapse unless otherwise determined by the board. There are no cash alternatives. The performance rights cannot be transferred and are not quoted on the ASX. Holders of performance rights are not entitled to notice of, or attend, a meeting of shareholders of the company, or receive any dividends declared by the company, until the rights have vested and then converted into shares.

Once allocated, disposal of shares is subject to restrictions whereby board approval is required to sell the shares granted within three years of the shares being allocated to the participant or; if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, within twelve months of the date employment ceases; or such other date as the board determines.

In the event of a takeover bid where the bidder and its associates become entitled to at least 50% of the voting shares of the company, any performance rights granted will vest where the board, in its absolute discretion, is satisfied that pro rata performance is in line with any performance condition applicable to those performance rights. Any performance rights which do not vest will immediately lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.

At 30 June 2014 there are 920,000 (2013: 1,124,734) performance rights outstanding under this plan.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27. Share-based payment plans continued

Options and performance rights granted under the second senior executive option plan and the performance rights plan

The expense recognised in the income statement in relation to share-based payments is disclosed in note 2(f).

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices ("WAEP") of and movements in performance rights issued during the year:

		30 June 2	014	30 June 2013		
	Note	Number of performance rights	WAEP	Number of performance rights	WAEP	
Outstanding at the beginning of the year		1,124,734	0.0000	1,030,000	0.0000	
Performance rights granted during the year		203,000	0.0000	563,234	0.0000	
Performance rights exercised during the year		(370,500)	0.0000	(337,500)	0.0000	
Performance rights lapsed during the year		(37,234)	0.0000	(131,000)	0.0000	
Outstanding at the end of the year	(a)	920,000	0.0000	1,124,734	0.0000	
Exercisable at the end of the year		-	-	-	-	

Notes

(a) The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2014 is represented by:

Number of performance rights	Note *	Grant date	Vesting date	Expiry date	WAEP \$	Fair value at grant date (\$)
165,000	(i)	12-Oct-11	01-Sep-14	03-Oct-14	0.0000	2.41
157,000	(ii)	12-Oct-11	01-Sep-14	03-Oct-14	0.0000	2.41
177,500	(iii)	02-Oct-12	03-Sept-15	05-Oct-15	0.0000	4.73
177,500	(iv)	02-Oct-12	03-Sept-15	05-Oct-15	0.0000	4.73
40,000	(v)	02-Oct-12	03-Oct-14	05-Nov-14	0.0000	4.95
92,500	(vi)	02-Oct-13	02-Sept-16	05-Oct-16	0.0000	7.61
92,500	(vii)	02-Oct-13	02-Sept-16	05-Oct-16	0.0000	7.61
18,000	(viii)	10-Mar-14	02-Jan-17	02-Feb-17	0.0000	8.58
920,000					0.0000	

(i) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 is at least 33.50 cents per share.

(ii) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 is at least 36.50 cents per share.

(iii) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 43.22 cents per share

(iv) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 47.33 cents per share
 (v) Performance condition being that the participant must be employed by the company on 3 October 2014.

(vi) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 is at least 46.00 cents per share.

(vii) These performance rights vest if the group's underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 is at least 49.20 cents per share.

(viii) Performance condition being that the participant must be employed by the company on 31 December 2016.

* In addition to the EPS performance hurdle, the participant must be employed by the company on the vesting date.

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27. Share-based payment plans continued

The average remaining contractual life for the performance rights outstanding at 30 June 2014 is between 1 and 3 years (2013: 1 and 3 years).

The exercise price for performance rights outstanding at the end of the year was \$0.00. (2013: \$nil).

The weighted average fair value of performance rights granted during the year was \$7.70 (2013: \$4.84).

The fair value of the equity-settled performance rights granted under the performance rights plan, is estimated as at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options and performance rights were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the grants during the year ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013:

	30 Jun	e 2014	30 June 2013			
	(Black- Scholes)	(Black- Scholes)	(Black- Scholes)	(Black- Scholes)	(Black- Scholes)	(Black- Scholes)
Grant date	10 Mar 14	2 Oct 13	2 Oct 12	2 Oct 12	2 Oct 12	2 Oct 12
Vesting date	2 Jan 17	2 Sep 16	3 Oct 14	3 Oct 13	2 Sept 13	3 Sep 15
Dividend yield (%)	3.50	4.00	5.00	5.00	5.00	5.00
Expected volatility (%)	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00
Historical volatility (%)	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00	35.00
Risk-free interest rate (%)	3.00	2.86	2.40	2.57	2.57	2.38
Expected life of performance right (years)	2.8 years	2.9 years	2.0 years	1.0 years	1.0 years	2.9 years
Performance right exercise price (\$)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Weighted average share price at grant date (\$)	9.93	8.33	5.74	5.74	5.74	5.74
Weighted average fair value at grant date (\$)	8.58	7.61	4.95	5.19	5.21	4.73

The expected life of the performance rights is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of performance rights granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

Note 28. Employee benefits

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
The aggregate employee benefit liability is comprised of:			
Trade and other payables (current)	15	3,356	4,357
Provisions – long service (current)	17	1,449	1,502
Provisions – long service (non-current)	17	1,461	1,308
Total employee benefits		6,266	7,167

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 29. Key management personnel

		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Note	\$'000	\$'000
Compensation by category: key management personnel			
Short-term		2,793	3,237
Post employment	(i)	143	119
Other long-term		20	39
Share-based payment		370	618
Total		3,326	4,013

(i) This includes defined contribution plans expense of \$143,000 (2013: \$119,000).

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	\$	\$
Note 30. Auditor's remuneration		
Amounts received or due and receivable from the entity and any other entity in the consolidated entity:		
Ernst & Young Australia – primary auditors - an audit or review of the financial report	325,000	335.000
·	020,000	000,000
Ernst & Young Australia's affiliates – primary auditors - an audit or review of the financial report	260,500	217,500
Total auditor's remuneration	585,500	552,500

Note 31. Significant events after year end

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the year which significantly affected or may affect the operations of the consolidated entity.

The financial report of Breville Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 20 August 2014.

Directors' declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Breville Group Limited, I state that:

- 1. In the opinion of the directors:
 - (a) the financial report and the additional disclosures included in the directors' report designated as audited, of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and
 - (b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
- 2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with sections 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended 30 June 2014.
- 3. In the opinion of the directors, as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the closed group identified in note 25(a) will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject, by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.
- 4. The financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

On behalf of the board

Steven Fisher Non-executive chairman

Sydney 20 August 2014



Ernst & Young 680 George Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 ey.com/au

Independent auditor's report to the members of Breville Group Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Breville Group Limited (the "Company"), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the *Corporations Act 2001* and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 *Presentation of Financial Statements*, that the financial statements comply with *International Financial Reporting Standards*.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors' report.



Ernst & Young 680 George Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 ey.com/au

Opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial report of Breville Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: a.
 - i. giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
- the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1. b.

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 12 to 23 of the directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Breville Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Ernst & Young

PS Barnard Partner Sydney 20 August 2014



Ernst & Young 680 George Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 ey.com/au

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Breville Group Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Breville Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Ernst & Young Manad

P S Barnard Partner 20 August 2014